
1800 12th Street | PO Box 2004 | Cayce SC 29171 
P 803 796 9020 | F 803 796 9072 

caycesc.gov 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
City of Cayce 

Regular Council Meeting 
Tuesday, March 4, 2025 

6:00 p.m. – Cayce City Hall – 1800 12th Street 
www.caycesc.gov  

 
To Access Council Meeting Livestream, click 

https://www.youtube.com/@cityofcayce1137/streams 
 
 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 
I. Call to Order 

 
A. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

 
B. Approval of Minutes 

February 4, 2025, Regular Council Meeting 
February 19, 2025, Regular Council Meeting  

 
II. Public Comment Regarding Items on the Agenda 
    

III. Presentation 
  

A.      Presentation by Mr. Carroll Williamson of Stewart Engineering on the Rewrite 
     of the City’s Zoning Ordinance and Land Development Regulations 

  
IV. Ordinances  
 

A.      Discussion and Approval of Ordinance 2025-03 Establishing New Municipal  
     District/Ward Lines for the Election of Council Members Reflecting Population 
     Changes in the Year 2020 Census and Repealing All Previous Ordinances 
     Establishing District/Ward Lines – Second Reading 

         
 V.         Items for Discussion and Possible Approval   

 
A.     Discussion and Approval to Enter into a Contract with Raftelis Financial   

    Consultants, Inc. for Financial Consulting  
   

VI. Committee Matters  
  

A. Approval to Enter the Following Committee Approved Minutes Into the City’s 
   Record    
  Planning Commission – December 16, 2024  

Cayce Museum Commission – January 8, 2025 

Mayor 
Elise Partin 

Mayor Pro-Tem Council Members    City Manager      Deputy City  Manager 
          Tim James Phil Carter   

             Hunter Sox 
            Byron Thomas 

 Michael Conley  
 

James Crosland 

http://www.caycesc.gov/
https://www.youtube.com/@cityofcayce1137/streams


 
 
 
 
 
Events Committee – January 9, 2025 
Planning Commission – January 27, 2025 

   
   VII. City Manager’s Report 

 
 VIII. Council Comments 
 

   IX. Executive Session 
 

A.      Discussion of Lexington County economic development projects relating to the   
     proposed location, expansion, or the provision of services encouraging location or    
     expansion of industries or other businesses within the City 
 

B. Receipt of legal advice and discussion of proposed contractual arrangements 
relating to: 

i. Avenues Drainage Project 
ii. SCDOT Intergovernmental Agreement regarding the Avenues Drainage 

Project 
 
NOTE: Items discussed in Executive Session may result in action by City Council 
upon its return to general session 

 
 X. Reconvene 
 
XI.   Ordinances 
 

A.     Discussion and Approval of Ordinance 2025-01 Amending the Zoning Map and  
    Rezoning Property Located on Dixiana Road (Tax Map Number 006899-01 
    -027) from M-1 to M-2 – Second Reading 
 

B.     Discussion and Approval of Ordinance 2025-02 Annexing Two (2) Properties 
    Located on Dixiana Road (Tax Map Number 006899-01-029 and 006899- 
    01-030) and Assigning M-2 Zoning Designations – Second Reading 

 
 XII. Possible actions by Council in Follow up to Executive Session  

 
A.      Bid Award for one of more phases of Avenues Drainage Project 

 
 

 
 XIII. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



ITEM I. B. 





























ITEM I. B. 



















Unified 
Development 

Ordinance 
Update

City Council
March 4, 2025 

ITEM III A.



AGENDA

 Introduction of team
 Process and Schedule
 Role of PC and City Council
 Comprehensive Plan- Goals
 Existing Zoning Framework
Key Issues
Next steps



Jake Petrosky, 
AICP
Practice Leader

Carroll Williamson, 
AICP 
Planning 
Manager

Andrea Radford
Planning Team 
Lead

Allan Goff, PE Cindy Szwarckop, 
AICP

Kelli McCormick, 
AICP 



PROCESS



SCHEDULE



GOALS OF THE UPDATE

=
=

=

 Create a Unified Development Ordinance



ROLES OF PLANNING COMMISSION AND CITY 
COUNCIL

City Council
Guiding role
 3 meetings scheduled
 Update in the summer and

then a final meeting when the
ordinance is ready for adoption

Planning Commission
 Serve as project’s steering

committee
 5 meetings scheduled
Most meetings will be a work

session on specific topics.



2020-2030 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: LAND USE 

Recommendations
 Allow zoning that provides for 

mixed-use and housing 
diversity
 Support the growing arts 

community
 Create zoning options for small 

planned development districts 
or cluster developments

Goals
Meet the Future Housing Needs 

of the Community
 Strengthen and Grow the 

Economy
 Preserve, Protect and Promote 

Natural and Cultural Resources
 Plan for Future Growth and 

Development



FUTURE LAND USE CHARACTER AREAS

1. Residential Conservation and
In-Fill Areas

2. Residential Density-Flex Areas
3. Transition Areas
4. Commercial-Business and

Retail Areas
5. Commercial-

Business/Industrial
6. Limited Development Areas
7. Resource Areas

Residential 
Conservation and 

Infill Areas

Transition Areas

Commercial-
Business/Industrial





FOCUS OF REVISIONS
 Implement the goals of the City, as documented 

in the Comprehensive Plan 
 Update zoning districts (including permitted 

uses, conditions and dimensional 
requirements)
 Evaluate and modify Design Overlay 

requirements
 Revisit and Assess Future Land Uses from 

Comprehensive Plan 
 Evaluate general development standards
 Evaluate infill development requirements
 Strengthen subdivision regulations that improve 

the long-term vitality of the neighborhoods
 Update organization and graphics of the 

ordinance



EXISTING ZONING 
FRAMEWORK





CURRENT ZONING DISTRICTS

Zoning Code Zoning District Name Acres %

C-1 Office/Institutional 114 1.2%

C-2 Neighborhood Commercial 13 0.1%

C-3 Central Commercial 87 0.9%

C-4 Highway Commercial 287 3.0%

DAD Development Agreement 30 0.3%

M-1 Light Industrial 1769 18.7%

M-2 Heavy Industrial 492 5.2%

PDD Planned Development 299 3.2%

RG-1 General Residential 11 0.1%

RG-2 General Residential, High Rise 342 3.6%

RS-1 Single Family, Large Lots 106 1.1%

RS-2 Single Family, Medium Lots 391 4.1%

RS-3 Single Family, Small Lots 979 10.3%

RS-4 Single Family, Small Lots 30 0.3%

D-1 Development 4525 47.8%

RS-4A Single Family, Small Lots Urban 2 0.0%



UNIQUE ZONING DISTRICTS

 (D-1) Development
  “Future development of this zone will 

necessitate rezoning in accord with the 
goals and objectives of the Comprehensive 
Plan.”

 (DAD)Development Agreement
 Specific to B-C High School

 PDD’s by the River with no 
documentation



KEY ISSUES



INFILL DEVELOPMENT 

 Current Ordinance: 
 Purpose. The purpose of 

requiring design standards for infill 
development is to ensure new 
developments within existing 
residential neighborhoods retain 
the character of that 
neighborhood.



2020 HOUSING STUDY RECOMMENDATIONS

 Create an Option for Small PDD or 
Cluster Development
 Allowing duplex and triplex buildings 

as by right in some neighborhoods
 Explore options for Residential 

Design Guidelines
 Create an Accessory Dwelling Unit 

policy
 Create a short-term rental policy



OVERLAY DISTRICTS

 Knox Abbott 
 Arts District
 12th Street
 I-77 Gateway

 Each of these Overlay Districts have 
design standards and requirements that 
reflect their unique character.

 We will assess and make 
recommendations about how these 
Districts may need to be amended to 
better match the City’s intent and growth 
pattern.



NEW USES TO PERMIT…OR NOT



FORMATTING AND GRAPHICS

•Improved navigation
•Header styles and 

formatting improvements
•More graphics to help convey 

standards
•Examples: signs, landscape 

buffer requirements

More user-friendly



OTHER 
TOPICS

Road/Street Standards

Parking Minimums

Landscaping/Open Space/ 
Tree Protection Requirements

Accessory Structures

Signs

Enforcement



NEXT STEPS

March 22: Soiree on State
April 21: Planning Commission Work 

   Session

QUESTIONS?



Memorandum
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Mayor and Council  

James Crosland, City Manager 

March 4, 2025 

Ordinance Establishing New District Lines for Municipal Elections - Second Reading 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

ISSUE 

Council’s approval is needed to give Second Reading to an Ordinance establishing new district lines 
for Municipal elections. 

BACKGROUND 

In response to the issuance of the new decennial census data, the City is obligated to undertake a 
redrawing of its Districts, if determined necessary, and worked with the South Carolina Revenue and 
Fiscal Affairs Office (SCRFA) to complete this process. In response to the issuance of the new 
decennial census data, it has been determined, that the city is in need of redrawing of its municipal 
voting districts. The city is working with the South Carolina Revenue and Fiscal Affairs Office (SCRFA) 
to complete the process.   

After reviewing the City’s Census data, SCRFA identified a target population for each District of 3,445 
individuals.  To achieve a recommended population deviation of 5%, District 2 needs to increase their 
population and District 4 needs to decrease their current population.   

ITEM IV. A. 

In March 2023, City Council adopted a Resolution (attached) outlining the standards by which it will use to 
achieve its redrawn district boundaries.  In June 2023, Council considered the proposed changes to District 
lines for First Reading but decided to defer the redistricting until after the November 2024 Municipal Election 
to ensure that all affected residents were informed of the proposed changes to the Districts.     
Furthermore, on February 4, 2025, Council deferred the proposed new district lines until the February 19, 
2025, Council Meeting, to ask SCRFA to review several additional district line suggestions. The Map, Exhibit A, 
reflects those suggested changes.  

The attached Map, Exhibit A, shows the proposed new boundaries to meet the adopted standards and 
required laws.  Corresponding demographics can be seen in Exhibit B.  



RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends Council give Second Reading approval of an Ordinance "Establishing new 
Municipal District/Ward Lines for the Election of Council Members Reflecting Population Changes in 
the Year 2020 Census and Repealing All Previous Ordinances Establishing District/Ward lines.” 



WHEREAS, the Council is authorized, pursuant to S.C. Code Section 5-
15-50, to establish by ordinance municipal ward or district lines for the election of
City Council members elected from wards or districts; and

WHEREAS, the results of the Federal Year 2020 Census reveal changes 
in the populations of the existing wards or districts from which Council members 
are elected; and  

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that it is in the interest of the City 
to establish new municipal ward or district lines reflecting the changes in 
population as shown by the Census so as to seek to provide for fair and equal 
representation of the population in the wards or districts of the City and to comply 
with the United States Constitution and the Voting Rights Act of 1965, as 
amended; and 

WHEREAS, the Council adopted a resolution approving the process for 
2020 Census redistricting at its meeting on March 7, 2023;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the 
City of Cayce, South Carolina, in Council, duly assembled, as follows:  

(1) That the ward or district lines for election of Council members from the
four single-member wards or districts, as shown in the map attached as Exhibit 
"A" hereto, are hereby adopted and are incorporated herein by reference as if 
fully set forth.  

(2) That the pertinent demographic data in reference to the election wards
or districts depicted in Exhibit "A" is attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit "B" and 
is incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth.  

(3) That, upon adoption of this Ordinance, the map attached as Exhibit "A"
shall be kept in the official records of the City. 

(4) That the provisions of any prior Ordinances of the City establishing
other ward or district lines for election of Council members, including without 
limitation the Ordinance adopted April 13, 2004, are hereby specifically and 
expressly repealed. This repeal shall not affect the validity of the offices of any 
Council members elected pursuant to ward or district lines in effect at the time of 
their elections to such office. 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
) 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) 
) 

CITY OF CAYCE ) 

ORDINANCE 2025-03 
Establishing New Municipal District/Ward 
Lines for the Election of Council Members 
Reflecting Population Changes in the 
Year 2020 Census and Repealing All 
Previous Ordinances Establishing 
District/Ward Lines 

ITEM IV. A. 



(5) The City Manager is authorized and directed to take such
administrative actions to promulgate and execute such procedures and policies 
as may be necessary or desirable to carry into effect and implement the 
redistricted single member election districts provided for in this Ordinance 
including the elections required thereby.  

This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading 
approval by Council. 

DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2025. 

   ______________________________ 
   Elise Partin, Mayor 

Attest: 

______________________________ 
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 

Public Hearing: _____________________ 

First Reading: _____________________ 

Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 

Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
      William C. Dillard, Jr., City Attorney 



3

2

1

4

LAUREL ST

S
U

M
T

E
R

 S
T

M
A

R
IO

N
 S

T

ELMWOOD AVE

GERVAIS ST

H
A

G
O

O
D

 A
V

E

C AVE

K
IL

B
O

U
R

N
E

R
D

U
N

N
A

M
E

D

S
T

LADY ST

HAMPTON ST

WHALEY ST

S
O

TT
RD

WHEAT ST

S
TA

T
E

 S
T

S
U

N
S

E
T

C
T

W
O

O
D

R
O

W
 S

T

VI
R

G
IN

IA
ST

G
A

D
S

D
E

N
 S

T

WHEAT ST

W
C

A
M

P
U

S
R

D

O
A

K
W

O
O

D
DR

M
A

IN
 S

T

I-77 ENTRANCE RAMP

PO
INSETT

LO
O

P

M
A

IN
 S

T

CA

N
ALSIDE

ST

LEAPHART RD

AUGUSTA RD

DOUBLE BRANCH RD

SUPERIOR ST

WASHINGTON ST

LYBRAND

ST

BLANDING ST

LEAPHART ST

S
A

LU
D

A
AV

E

S
 M

A
R

B
LE

S
T

BLOSSOM ST

GERVAIS ST

TAYLOR ST

AUGUSTA ST

CATAWBA

ST

TAYLOR ST

K
IN

G
 S

T

LIB
E

R
T

Y

H
ILL

AV
E

S
A

LU
D

A
AV

E

LY
O

N
 S

T

H
A

R
D

E
N

S
T

W
E

S
T

M
IN

S
T

E
R

D
R

P
IN

E
 S

TH
A

R
D

E
N

 S
T

CATAWBA ST

SHORTLEAF

ALY

M
C

D
U

F
F

IE

A
V

E

BR
AY

PA
R

K
R

D

LA
U

R
E

N
S

 S
T

M
E

D
IC

A

L C I R

Z
E

IG
LE

R

S
T

ELMWOOD AVE

DEVINE ST

G
LA

D
D

E
N

 S
T

DEVO
N

S
H

IR
E

D
R

K
IT

T
Y

H
A

W
K

D
R

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY
S

T

PA
R

N
E

LL

S
T

DEVINE
ST

S
K

IL
B

O
U

R
N

E
R

D

W
AY

N
E

S
T

KERSHAW ST

LA
U

R
E

N
S

S
T

DILLONST

S
H

O
L

LY
S

T

S
A

N
T

E
E

AV
E

DUNBAR RD

RAINBOW DR

HICKORY ST

ROSEWOOD DR

U
N

N

AMED ST

S
 B

O
N

H
A

M
 R

D

S
W

A
LK

E
R

S
T

STARK

ST

PA
R

K
 S

T

S
M

A
P

LE
S

T

S HARDEN
ST

E
T

IW
A

N
A

V
E

B
LU

FF R
D

COLLEGE

ST

KIRBY ST

S
LO

A
N

 S
T

H
O

W
A

R
D

S
T

I-26 ENTRANCE RAM
P

PENDLETON ST

G
IS

T

S
T

S
W

O
O

D
R

O
W

S
T

MONTICELLO

ST

B
A

R
N

W
E

LL S
T

B
LU

FF R
D

POPLAR ST

A
S

S
E

M
B

LY
 S

T

COLLEGE ST

HEYWARD

ST

WASHINGTON ST

W
A

LT
E

R
B

O
R

O
S

T

SENATE ST

GREENE ST

RICHLAND ST

G
R

E
G

G
 S

T

H
U

G
E

R
 S

T

PENDLETON

ST

CALHOUN ST

P
IC

K
E

N
S

 S
T

KALM
IA

D
R

M
ID

D
LETO

N

ST

O
A

K
S

T

H
U

G
E

R
S

T

H
U

LO
N

G
R

E
E

N
E

PL

M
A

IN
 S

T

E
T

IW
A

N
 AV

E

A ST

SENATE ST

H
E

N
D

E
R

S
O

N
 S

T

T
Y

LE
R

 S
T

B
U

LL S
T

B
U

LL S
T

17T
H

S
T

HOLLAND ST

MOSS CREEK DR

S
R

A
V

E
N

E
L

S
T

S
S

H
A

N
D

O
N

S
T

NAPLES AVE

H
E

N
D

E
R

S
O

N
 S

T

SENATE ST

S
E

D
IS

TO
AV

E

S
 G

R
E

G
G

 S
T

W
O

O
D

H
U

R
S

T

LN
S

R
A

V
E

N
E

L
S

T

DEVINE ST
BLOSSOM ST

T
H

O
R

N

WELL

C

T

H
O

O
K

AV
E

S
P

R
O

S
P

E
C

T
S

T

S
U

N
R

IS
E

A
V

E

N
1

2TH
ST

FR
A

S
IE

R
 S

T

G
A

D
S

D
E

N
S

T

S
S

A
LU

D
A

A
V

E

ROSEWOOD DR
H

E
ID

T S
T

W
ILLIA

M
S

S
T

OL
IV

ER

ST

LADY
ST

SUNSET BLVD

B
E

LT
LI

N
E

B
LV

D

SPRING ST

I-77
S

O
U

TH
R

A
M

P
TO

I-26
E

A
S

T

S
PICKENS

ST

S
W

A
C

C
A

M
A

W
A

V
E

LEXING
TO

N
S

T

SUPERIOR ST

JENSEN

ST

LIN
C

O
LN

 S
T

D
E

E
R

W
O

O
D

S
T

S
BELT

LI
NE

BLV
D

TRENHOLM RD

JARVIS KLAPMAN BLVD

N
M

ILLW
O

O
D

AV
E

O
A

K
 S

T

LIN
C

O
LN

 S
T

I-77 EXIT RAMP

LEAPHARTST

MILLWOOD AVE

FRIN
K S

T

M
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
V

E

LIN
C

O
LN

 S
T

M
E

LO
D

Y

DR

W
AY

N
E

S
T

I-26 ENTRANCE RAMP

FA
IR

LA
W

N
CIR

ATLAS R
D

9T
H

 S
T HEYWARD ST

B
E

LT
LI

N
E

B
LV

D

S
U

B
E

R
 S

T

M
O

N
A

R
C

H

LN

H
U

G
E

R
 S

T

SABAL

DR

W
ILLIA

M
S

S
T

CRAPPS AVE

OLD
DUNBAR RD

PLA
TT

SPRIN
GS

RD

H
U

G
E

R
 S

T

TAYLOR ST

S
U

N
N

Y
S

ID
E

D
R

H
E

N
D

R
IX

 S
T

DUKE ST

G

LENN
ST

M
ID

D
LETON

S
T

COMANCHEE TRL

B
E

LT
LI

NE
BLV

D

UNNAM
ED

FRO
NTAG

E
R

D

HILLDALE RD

HEYWARD ST

PLOWDEN RD

CATAWBA

ST

HAYNES LN

14T
H

S
T

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T

MORNIN
GSID

E DR

SILVER

S
T

HEYWARD ST

BUCKEYE DR

LIN
C

O
LN

S
T

P
U

LA
S

K
I S

T

JU
LIU

S
 F

E
LD

E
R

 S
T

BLOSSOM
ST

FO
STER

BR
O

TH
ER

S D
R

WASHINGTON

ST

M
A

IN
 S

T

JE
S

S
A

M
IN

E
 S

T

MIMOSARD

C
H

AV
IS

 S
T

FIR
S

T
AV

E

R
O

O
F

S
T

DEVINE ST

PINE RIDGE DR

GILL ST

B AVE

FIRST ST S

OAKDALE

RD

C
H

A
R

LE
S

T
O

N
H

W
Y

P
O

IN
S

ETT
P

L

MIKELL LN

DEVEREAUX RD

UN NAMED

ST

N
 B

R
O

W
N

 S
T

EUREKA ST

AIR
PO

RT 
BLV

D

S
U

NBURY LN

B
E

N
TO

N

C
IR

W
ACCAM

AW
AVE

RALEIGH ST

ENOREE

AVE

DIXIANA RD

RO
SEW

O
O

D
DR

DECREE AVE

PA
R

K
 S

T

TAYLOR

ST

OLYMPIA AVE

ELMWOOD AVE

SENECA

AVE

SILVER

RUNPL

D
O

G
W

O
O

D
 S

T

TA
LL

P
IN

E
S

C
IR

GLE
N

H
A

V
E

N
D

R

O
A

K
S

T

TRENHO
LM RD

GARDNERS
TERRACE RD

LADY

ST

LO
R

IC
K

 S
T

K
O

O
N

S
T

SENATE ST

A
R

A
LI

A
D

R

HOLT DR

F AVE

BLUFF RD

TA
N

G
LE

W
O

O
D

R
D

CENTER ST

TRENHOLM RD

B
U

LL S
T

N
O

R
T

H
S

T

IN
V

IE
W

R
D

Q
U

E
E

N
 S

T

COMMERCE DR

N
LUCAS

ST

S

ASSEMBLY ST

WILTON RD

SENATE

ST

SENATE ST

B
R

O
O

K
W

O
O

D CIR

TOMAKA RD

MEETING ST

SENATE ST

BLOOMWOODRD

E
A

S
T

M
IN

S
T

E
R

 D
R

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D
 R

D

TAYLOR RD

H
O

U
S

E
S

T

LILLIE ST

SENATE

ST

B
U

R

ROUGHS

AVE

TIMBERLANE
DR

FE
R

G
U

SO
N

ST

TAY
LO

RLN

MARK
BUYCK WAY

LIN
C

O
LN

 S
T

N
9T

H
S

T

BATCHELOR ST

D
A

LY
 S

T

SANTEE

AVE

SAINTJA
M

E
S

ST

ARMSTRON
G

S
T

WHALEY

ST

BEECLIFF DR

SENNST

M
C

S
W

A
IN

D
R

HAZEL ST

AG
A

PE
D

R

CYPRESSST

BALLARD CT

A
D

E
LI

N
E

D
R

CONGAREE

BLUFF AVE

B
R

A
N

H
A

M

S
T

LA
B

U
R

N
U

M
D

R

S
O

X
S

T

BOSTON AVE

EL
LI

S

DRBILOXISQ

S
IM

S
A

LY

ELSIE CT

S
H

A
N

D
O

N
 S

T

VINE
ST

G
R

A
Y

M
O

N
T

A
V

E

HUDSON AVE

H
E

Y
W

AR
D

S
T

D
U

B
B

S
A

V
E

P
IN

E
D

A
LE

 R
D

ROBIN CRESTDR

G
IS

T
 S

T

SILVER W
IN

G

D R

U
N

NAM

E
D

S
T

P
U

LA
S

K
I S

T

WHEAT ST

B
U

LL

S
TSPANISH

OAK DR

EMPRESS

RD

LONG
ST

R
IV

ER
FLOWCT

LE
X

IN
G

TO
N

D
R

S
P

R
IN

G
D

A
LE

 R
D

M
EM

O
R

IA
L

D
R

E
H

R
LI

C
H

 S
T

DOGWOOD RD

S
W

ILLIA
M

S

S
T

LAUREL LEAF

DR

DECATUR
ST

M
IA

M
I

S
T

S
IM

S
 A

V
E

JOYCE
ST

BLU
F

F
IN

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
B

LV
D

UNNAMED S

T

ABBOTT

RD

HULON DR

HOOKDALE RD

TA
YLO

R
ST

TU
F

T
O

N
C

T

U
N

N

A M E
DS

T

STARMOUNT DR

NORTHLAND DR

P
IN

E
V

IE
W

R
D

MONTGOMERY AVE

LIVE OAK ST

TARRYTO
W

N LN

BONNIE

ST

ADKINS CIR

FORREST RD

C
O

N

GARE
E

M
ILL

LN

R
O

Y
S

T
E

R
S

T

12TH
S

TR
E

E
T

E
X

T

FOREST DR

O
LD

S
TA

T
E

R
D

W
EEPIN

G

O
AK

LN
HARVEST

G
LE

N
LN

C
H

R
IS

D
R

G
A

D
S

D
E

N
S

T

S
H

U
LE

R
S

T

ELM ST

S
IM

M
O

N
 TR

E
E

 LN

U
N

N
AM

ED
ST

POPLAR ST

A
D

G
E

R
 R

D

AUTUMN

MIST DR

P
O

IN
S

E
T

T
IA

 S
T

S
 LU

C
A

S

S
T

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

L

N

FI
SH

HAT
CHERY

RD

R
IV

E
R

V
IE

W

D
R

BLUFFRD

SHULL

ST

I-77 SOUTH

BARW
ICK

ST

W
AT

E
R

E
E

AV
E

S
A

IN
T

JA
M

E
S

S
T

12TH
S

TR
E

E
T

E
X

T

B
U

T
LE

R
 S

T

G
LE

N
W

O
O

D

R
D

A
X

T
E

L
L

D
R

S
S

U
M

TE
R

S
T

H
E

A
T

H
W

O
O

D

C
IR

SILLLN

CLARK ST

U
N

N
AM

ED

ST

I77

W
ILLIA

M
S

ST

AMHERSTAVE

S
H

O
R

T

ST

BU
R

D
O

C
K

C
IR

RUS SELL

RD

FA
V

O
R

IT
E

C
T

HOLM
E

SS
T

S
 E

D
E

N
 D

R

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
S

T

WESTW

O
O

D

DR

ST ILL HOP

ESD
R

HARVARD AVE

S
PA

R
S

O
N

S
T

6T
H

 S
T

B
ILO

X
I

S
Q

W
R

IG
H

T
LN

W
AY

N
E

S
T

A
N

N
S

T

W
AY

N
E

 S
T

OSWALDDR

B
E

R
K

E
LE

Y
 R

D

CARLISLE ST

JO
S

H
UA

S
T

M
E

R
C

C
T

LAFAYETTE AVE

A ST

SHOP RD

12TH
S

TR
E

E
T

E
X

T

S
E

AY
DR

GUIGNARD AVE

CAPERS AVE

JARVIS KLAPMAN

EXIT RAMP

WALTER PRICE RD

BRIGHT AVE

R
O

S
E

M
A

R
Y

D
R

CYPRESS ST

G
RANBY

LN

P
IN

E
V

IE
WR

D

W
ILK

IN
S

O
N

 S
T

UNNAMED S
T

U
N

N
AM

ED

ST

PAVILLION
AVE

I-26 EAST RAMP TO I-77 NORTH

STEELE DR

WILMOT AVE

G
U

ILF
O

R
D

 S
T

STRATFORD

RD

M
OR

LA
IN

E

R
D

W
IN

D
S

O
R

 D
R

S
W

E
E

T
B

R
IA

R
R

D

S
LA

N
ND
R

WHITEHALL RD

D
A

LE

LN

I-26 E
A

S
T

DEW AVE

OAKH
ILL

R
D

CAPERS AVE

RILEY ST

I-26 W
E

S
T

A
S

H
LE

Y C
T

S
A

LU
DA

TR

L

WILLIAM H

TULLER DR

N
 BELTLIN

E
BLVD

ANDREWS RD

MONTGOMERY AVE

BUFF ST

LO
N

D
O

N
DERRY

LN

SENATE ST

C
A

R
RING

TO
N

DR

HOPE AVE

W
ES

T
VIE

W

D
R

E
LD

O
N

 D
R

H
E

R
M

A
N

S
T

HOOVER

ST

C
H

E
V

IS
S

T

H
O

W

E
ST

S
A

LU
D

A

T
R

L

STARVIEW DR

LE
APHART

RD

SIERRA DR

LA
W

N
CT

PERSIMMON ST

S
IM

S
 A

V
E

PARKMAN
DR

P
O

E
S

T

N
 LIN

E

S
T

EDMOND DR

R
O

O
F

S
T

LE
X

IN
G

T
O

N
D

R

M
O

H
A

W
K

 D
R

BELL

CT

HAMRICK ST

UNN
A

M
E

D
S

T

B
E

LM
O

N
T

 D
R

A

BBER
L

Y

V
I LLAG

E
C

I R

12T
H

 S
T

STRATFORD
RD

HOLLAND

ST

ATLAS R
D

OAKLAND AVE

HOLLAND AVE

SHO
P

RD

TW
O

M
A

C
LN

S M
ARION ST

BENTON

CIR

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D
 D

R

QUARRYST

I-77 NORTH

HAMPTON ST

GLENWOODPL

I-26
E

X
IT

R
A

M
P

N
 H

O
O

K
AV

E

FLORA ST

ASTE
R

ST

UNNA
M

E
D

ST

WHITNEY ST

LAZY

PIN
ES

DR

C
H

E
R

O
K

E
E

S
T

H
A

M
M

O
N

D
AV

E

D AVE

S
W

O
O

D
S

ID
E

PKW
Y

A
P

P
LE

 S
T

A
R

E
H

A
R

T
ST

ZIO
N

AVE

C
IR

C
LE

DR

E BUCHANAN DR

W
H

IP
P

O
O

R
W

IL
L

D
R

GRANBY RD

SEWANEE DR

JONES
ST

S
E

N
N

 S
T

I-77

ENTRANCE RAMP

LA
U

R
E

L
C

RES
T

DR

OCEOLA

ST

S
E

VA
N

SS
T

OLD DAIRY RD

RIC
E ST

SUNNYSIDE DR

HEYWARD ST

LANTANA DR

TIMBERLANE DR

BLA
IR

ST

JARVIS
KLAPM

A
N

ENTR RAM

P

MICHELLE
DR

LEE ST

I-126 WEST

I126

ANN
ST

C
AR

OLIN AST

S
H

E
R

W
O

O
D

R
D

EXUM DR

D
A

R
B

Y
W

AY

MITCHELL ST

D
O

G
W

O
O

D
 L

N

H
O

U
STO

N

W
AY

KNOX ABBOTT DR

ELW
YN

LN

B
O

N
H

A
M

R
D

HALLMAN ST

CANTERBURY

RD

PRESTON ST

M
C

C
A

LL
S

T

C
H

A
R

LE
S

T
O

N
 H

W
Y

A
U

T
U

M
N

KN
O

LL
D

R

KILN
CT

SHULL ST

C
LA

R
EM

ONT
DR

D
A

N
W

O
O

D
D

R

CHILDS ST

AUDREY

LN

T
R

E
E

 S
T

C
A

U
G

H
M

A
N

S
T

B
A

R
N

W
E

LL
S

T

LIN
C

O
LN

 S
T

W
ILK

IN
S

O
N

S
T

S
H

U
M

A
R

D

O
A

K
C

T

YALE
AVE

D
E

R BY DR

LY
O

N

S

T

KENNEDY ST

C
H

U
R

C
H

S
T

BROOKCLIFF

DR
A

Z
AL

EA

C
IR

A ST

13T
H

 S
T

CIMARRON
TRL

KIRKLAND ST

M
A

P
LE

 S
T

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
D

R

N
LIN

E
 S

T

M
ANLEY ST

ROSE DR

BATCHELOR ST

TERRACE
WAY

IDLEWO
O

DDR

GERVAIS ST

O
RCHARD

ST

THE BOULEVARD

E
X

P
R

E
S

S
D

R

R
O

O
FS
T

HEATHERWO OD R

D

C
O

U
R

T
N

E
Y

D
R

W
B

U
C

H
AN

AN DR

RIVIERA
RD

LANIER
AVEKARLANEY AVE

R
A

U
T

O
N

S
T

LLO
YDW

O
O

D DR

MAGNOLIA
GLEN LN

W
E

S
S

IN
G

E
R

 S
T

KOLOBST

U
N

N AMED ST

GAMBRELL ST

UNNAMED

ST

OCEOLA ST

T
R

E
E

 S
T

PRENTICE AVE

DRYDEN

CT

GLENDALE

RD

EVERGREEN AVE

MISTI

CT

P
O

N
D

DR

JANSEN

AVE

LU
CAS

ST

WASHINGTON ST

UN

N
A

M
E

D
S

T

U
N

N
A

ME D
S

T

ALLISON

CT

D
E

E
R

W
O

O
D

S
T

BASE
ST

OAKDALE
DR

LACY ST

I77

P
E

R
R

Y

S
T

8T
H

 S
T

O
N

TA
R

IO
D

R

H
A

R
B

O
R

 D
R

A
P

P
LE

TO
N

C
T

R
U

T
LA

N
D

AV
E

I-26

EXIT

RA
M

P

W
O

O
D

H
AV

E
N

 D
R

W
E

S
T

H
AV

E
N

D
R

DURHAM DR

LIN
KS
T

A
LE

X
A

N
D

E
R

R
D

LINWOOD
RD

M
O

S
S

C
O

V
E

 C
T

N
 LU

C
A

S

S
T

7T
H

 S
T

M
O

S
S

T
R

E
E

C
T

ARLINGTON ST

H
O

LL
Y

 S
T

P
R

IC
E

C
IR

BLANDING

ST

H
E

ID
T

 S
T

P
IN

E
S

T

S
H

IR
LE

Y
 S

T

O
S

A
G

E
AV

E

GERVAIS

ST

SHO
P

RD

GARDEN

VIEW DR

H
U

M
A

N
E

L
N

H
IC

KORY
ST

LYN
D

ALE D
R

S
STA

DIU
M

R
D

R
O

S
S

M
O

R
E

D
R

F
O

N
TA

N
N

A
AV

E

S
TO

N
E

W
O

O
D

D
R

SOUTH
ER

N
D

R

SUGAR HILL LN

TAYLOR ST

C
H

ES
TN

UT

O
AK

LN

SUMMOR DR

BEEH
IVE

D
R

MONROE ST

LAV
E

R
N

JU
M

P
E

R

R
D

I77

E BROADW
AY

ST

BARNES ST

S
C

R
O

M
W

E
LL

S
T

N
PA

R
S

O
N

S
T

P
A

G
E

S
T

S
BULL

ST

O
H

IO
 S

T

JOYE ST

BURNEY DR

ABELI
A

CT

V
IS

TA

V
IE

W
D

R

JARVIS KLAPMAN

EXIT RAMP

UNNAM
ED

ST

DILL
CT

GODLEY

ST

HEYWARD

ST

S
E

M
IN

O
LE

D
R

DELIESSELINE

RD

S
E

N
N

 S
T

GEORGE

RO
G

ERS
BLV

D

C
A

R
LIN

D
R

P
IN

E
S

T

H
U

D
S

O
N

C
IR

YOUMAN ST

TERRACE

VIEW DR

N
 M

A
R

B
LE

S
T

R
O

B
IN

CREST DR

FINNE

G
A

N
LN

AVIATIONWAY

SENATE ST

RICHARDSON

ST

FIN
LE

Y
 S

T

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
 D

R

TAYLOR ST

DEVINE
ST

U
N

N
A

M
E

D

ST

A
S

T

S
H

EF
FIE

LD LN

W
ILLIA

M
S

S
T

W
ILK

IN
S

O
N

S
T

VISTA

VIEW

CT

W
ILLIA

M

S ST

N

W
IT

T
S

T

R
A

V
E

N
S

C
R

O
F

T
R

D

GREENE

ST

T
H

U
R

M
O

N
D

M
A

LL

TA
N

G
LE

W
O

O
D

R
D

M
AVE

I-26
EXIT

R
AM

P

AMAK
E

R
D

R

A
B

B
O

TT
 R

D

JA
D

ET
REE

C
T

G
R

O
O

V
E

R
C

IR

10T
H

 S
T

DOVER ST

PICKETT
ST

BRATTON ST

NORFOLK
ST

1S
T

S
T

2N
DS
T

UNN AMED

ST

R
AUTON

S
T

H
A

N
C

O
C

K
 S

T

I-
26

E
X

IT
R

A
M

P

D AVE

AIRPORT BLVD

W
A

LC
O

TT
 S

T

ID
LE

W
IL

D
 B

LV
D

KEY RD

SO
UTH

W
O

O
D

D
R

UNNAMED ST

H
O

N
E

Y
S

U
C

K
LE

S
T

AUGUSTA
ST

BLANDING

ST

UNNAM
E

D

ST

HOBBY ST

W
A

LN
U

T

S
T

SOUTH ST

W
ILD

LIF
E

PK
W

Y

HE
MLOCK

ST

PO
IN

SE

TT LOOP

COURT
AVE

B
O

N
H

ILL D
R

CLUBHOUSE
D

R

UNNAMED
ST

LO
W

N

S
T

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

S
T

N
16T

H
S

T

HOLLY
HILL DR

SLANN CT

JU
MPER ST

MOFFATT

ST

K
IP

LIN
G

D
R

W
ALL

ST

C
A

M

ERON
CT

WHISPE
R

IN
G

G
LEN

C
IR

A
LLE

Y
S

T

W ITHER SDR

B
O

O
Z

E
R

S
T

LO
W

N
D

R

INDIGO

AVE

MERRY
DR

SHANDON
PLACE DR

LAURIE
ST

HAFLEYCT

M
E

A
D

O
W

C
R

E
S

T
D

R

RIVERHILL

CT

IL
E

X
 S

T

ARBORGATE
DR

S
 LIN

E

S
T

EVERGREEN
LN

ALABAMA

ST

S
A

N
D

S
S

T

LABRU
C

E
LN

KERSHAW
ST

I-77 ENTRANCE RAMP

M
A

R
Y

LA
N

D
 S

T

D
A

R
D

E
N

S
T

M CDUFFIE
ST

UN
N

AM
ED

S
T

ROMELL

RD

HICKORY ST

KENILWORTH

RD

EATON

ST

SHAD
B LO

W
LN

O
T

T
 R

D

U
N

N
AM

ED

ST

LO
N

S
D

A
LE

D
R

S
A

IN
T

A
N

N
S

A
LY

PAR
K

PLAC
E

LN

S
TO

N
E

H
E

N
G

E

D
R

LINWOOD RD

ROSEW
OOD

HIL
LS

DR

O
CEO

LA
ST

B
AY

S
T

OAKLAND
AVE

C
R

IC
K

E
T

C
T

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D
D

R

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

A
V

E

U
N

NAMEDST

T
R

A
I LSTREAM RD

M
ARLB

ORO RD

S
A

LU
D

A
C

H
A

S
E

W
A

Y

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
LN

I-26
ENTRA

N
C

E
R

A
M

P

SULTON

ST

S
W

IT
T

S
T

MILLEN

ST

BAY
W

ATER

D
R

D
E

N
H

A
M

 A
V

E

B
O

TA
N

IC
A

L
P

K
W

Y

O
N

TA
R

IO

S
T

E
H

O
S

P
ITA

L
D

R

CHERRY ST

I-77 EXIT RAMP

E
D

W
A

R
D

C
T

KIAWAH AVE

PINENOOK

CIR

T
E

M
P

O

C
T

AZ
ALEA
DR

M
AVE

E
M

E
D

IC
A

L

LN

UNNAM
ED

ST

CAYCE ST

M
IS

S
IO

N
R

D

BR
UC

E
RD

T
E

X
A

S
 S

T

CRESTWOOD

DR

CALWAY

ALY

B
U

S
HS
T

G
R

A
H

A
M

S
T

LA
U

R
IE

LN

O
LD

P
LA

N
TA

T
IO

N
D

R

HADLEY
HALL RD

LIT
T

LE

C
H

R
IS

LN

N
EW

STATE

RD

A
S

BU
R

Y
LN

TRENHOLM RD

C
O

N
G

A
R

E
E

D
R

LOQUAT

DR

BAY ST

W
A

N
D

O
 S

T

U
N

N AME D
S

T

HAZEL ST

H AVE

W
H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

D
R

I-26E
X

IT
RAM

P

LA
N

IE
R

AV
E

TUGALOO AVE

D
U

M
O

N
T

S
T

I-26 EX
IT

RAM
P

STAHL ST

S
B

R
O

W
N

S
T

WREN DR
GRAHAMS

ALY

S
W

A
N

N
A

N
O

A
 D

R

HARRISON

CIR

LONGLEAF RD

LAKE WOOD DR

R
O

B
IN

C
R

E
S

T
D

R

CUPSTID
ST

PARLIAMENTDR

3R
D

 S
T

ROCKMOUNT

DR

DEVINE

ST

IL

LINOIS

AVE

G
A

R
D

E
N

IA
S

T

LA
N

D
M

AR
K

D
R

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
S

TJA
S

P
E

R
S

T

W
A

D
S

W
O

R
T

H
 D

R

KEW
LE

AF
LN

CAM
ELIA

ST

PA
R

K

S
T

KIAWAH

AVE

G
ARDNER

DR

R
A

IN
B

O
W

 C
IR

RO SS ST

JO
N

E
S

S
T

HURON ST

B
IS

T
LIN

E

D
R

LITTLE

BROOKE LN

I-26
E

X
IT

R
A

M
P

GILL ST

PINEWOOD DR

PINE ST

BAXTER
S

T

E
LIZA

B
E

TH

S
T

BURLIE

DRIVE EXT

M
A

ID
E

N
 L

N

OWEADA

DR

TRENHOLM RD

A
N

N
LN

LE
S

LE
Y

D
R

CRAFT ST

WILLIAMS CIR

MARABOUCIR

S
H

A
D

Y LN

H
U

D
S

O
N

 S
T

P
R

IN
C

E
T

O
N

S
T

A
B

B
O

TT
 R

D

CAROLINA

ST

UNNAMED
S

T

N E
DEN D

R

G
R

A
N

ITE
H

ILL
R

D
G

R
A

N
IT

E
H

ILL R
D

F
O

R
E

M
A

N
S

T

B
A

LD
W

IN

S
T

SOUTH ST

TEX
A

S

AV
E

N
LU

C
A

S

S
T

REDBIR
D

LN

LADY

ST

D
A

IS
Y

LN

ROLLING

H
IL

LS
LN

D
E

A
L

S
T

LE
E

 S
T

BLOSSOM

ST

LO
W

NS
T

SUMMERLAND DR

PINEWOOD

DR

1S
T

S
T

PALO

VERDE DR

SALUDA RIVER DR

CRAPPS

AVE

DREHER ST

MACGREGOR DRWITHERSPOON
DR

PHELPS

S
T

A
LE

X
A

N
D

R
IA

S
T

11T
H

 S
T

LYNNWOOD

RD

K
E

N
T

U
C

K
Y

S
T

P
A

L
M

E
R

R
D

M
IL

LPO
N

D
R

D

10T
H

 S
T

CASSINA RD

A
IR

P
O

R
T 

B
LV

D

6T
H

S
T

ABBEVILLE

ST

COLEMAN ST

N
 W

O
O

D
S

ID
E

P
K

W
Y

13T
H

 S
T

HOLLYWOOD DR

8T
H

S
T

MOSS AVE

B
E

V
E

R
LY

 D
R

WILMA

DR

JACKSON ST

C
A

S
TLE

D
R

E
D

M
U

N
D

H
W

Y

CHIMNEY

SWIFT LN

DUNCAN ST

11T
H

 S
T

S
A

LU
D

A

AV
E

I77

16T
H

S
T

WILMOT AVE

W
H

O
LE

S
A

LE
 LN

JO
H

N
S

S
T

PIC
AD

ILLY D
R

7T
H

S
T

SHULL ST

DENBERG
RD

VIOLET ST

13T
H

 S
T

KINGSWOOD
DR

CORRAL LN

FA
IR

V
IE

W
 D

R

OTTAWA TRL

TIMBER

RIDGE DR

BEAVER

TAIL CIR

M
AR

KET
ST

DREYFUSRD

RAILROAD ST

COLLEGE

ST

G
R

A
H

A
M

AV
E

W
H

IT
E

N
E

R

LN

C
A

R
D

IN
A

L
D

R

DREHER RD

GREENW
OOD R

D

GUNTER

DR

H
E

N
D

E
R

S
O

N

S
T

5T
H

S
T

CASSINA
RD

10T
H

 S
T

H
A

Y
N

E
S

W
O

R
T

H
R

D

EXCLUSIVE

DR

LADY
ST

YALE AVE

GANTT ST

E
LM

A
V

E

DUNCAN ST

WELLINGTON
R

D

M
E

T
H

O
D

IS
T

PA
R

K
R

D

STRATFO
R

D
R

D

HOPEDALE
DR

ERIE ST

WILMOT AVE

D
E

L
A

W
A

R
E

S
T

PA
R

N
E

LL

S
T

FORT CONGAREE TRL

S
 K

IN
G

S
T

W
ILLIA

M
S

S
T

JO
Y

N
E

R

A
V

E

S
U

G
A

R

H
ILL

P
T

HEYWARD ST

O
R

IO
LE

LN

LOTUSST

LEXINGTON

AVE

HART ST

H
E

M
P

H
IL

L 
S

T

KLAPMAN RD

P
E

M
B

R
O

K
E

A
V

E

F
E

R
N

D
A

LE

R
D

B
O

N
N

IE

S
T

E
LM

 A
V

E

H
U

N
T

IN
G

TO
N

A
V

E

C
A

R
R

O
LTO

N

S
T

BARRON

ST

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

W
A

Y

K
E

LS
E

Y
 C

T

S
Q

U
E

E
N

 S
T

FRANKLIN ST

DUVALST

R
A

V
E

N
E

L 
S

T

U
N

N
A

M
ED

ST

I-26
E

N
T

R
A

N
C

E
R

A
M

P

CHARLOTTE

AVE

BELLW
OOD

RD

M
AT

H
IA

S
R

D

E
A

G
LE

D
R

MEADOW

LN

W
A

LK
E

R
 S

T

G
E

O
R

G
IA

S
T

N
E

VA
D

A
S

T

W
AT

E
R

LO
O

W
AY

B
A

R
N

W
E

LL
S

T

D
A

H
LI

A
 R

D

MY
R

TLE

C
T

HOPE
AVE

M
IC

K
E

N
S

R
D

W
E

S
T

S
ID

E
 D

R

M
E

D
W

A
Y

R
D

WOODSIDE
CT

E
VA

N
S

S
T

T
IF

FA
N

Y
T

R
L

LAKESHORE

DR

HEYWARD

ST

WILEYST

D
A

LY
S

T

COLLEGE

ST

PRENTICE AVE

Q
U

E
E

N
 S

T

P
R

IN
C

E
S

S
S

T

B
A

R
LO

W
 R

D

COLLEGE

ST

ED
ISTO

AVE

FELTON

ST

G
R

O
V

E
R

 S
T

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
S

T

PINEHAVENCT

BROO
K

F
IE

LD
DR

INDIGO AVE

JUPITER
ST

M
ILLE

N
 S

T

LAKEVIE
W

DR

P
U

LA
S

K
I

S
T

V
IR

G
IN

IA
S

T

LA
K

E
V

IE
W

D
R

STEAMBOAT

RUN

K
IM

 S
T

I-26
E

N
T

R
A

N
C

E

R
A

M
P

SIOUXTRL

CREIGHTON DR

BROOKS AVE

A
LB

IO
N

 R
D

B
LA

N
D

IN
G

S
T

C
A

LI
F

O
R

N
IA

D
R

GREENE ST

W
ILLIA

M
S

S
T

D
O

U
B

LE

B
R

A
N

C
H

C
T

S
A

N
D

Y

LN
H

U
N

TIN
G

TO
N

D
R

COM
M

ERCEDR

RICHLAND
ST

LINCOLN
RD

T
O

O
LE

S
T

C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R
S

T

R
E

MC
T

RE
U

B
E

N
C

IR

CANNON
ST

PENDLETON ST

APACHE TRL

N
O

B
LE

S
T

SPIRES
ST

E
P

T
IN

G
S

T

NAVAJO TRL

HOOKLAWND
R

LU
K

E
S

T

CHOCTAW

TRL

OVERBROOK DR

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
W

A
Y

M
E

LTO
N

 A
LY

KNAPP

ST

I7
7 

S

BEECH
ST

S
W

E
E

TG
U

M
D

R

S
P

R
IN

G
W

A
T

E
R

C
T

KLINE
ST

NASSAU RD

W
HIT

E AVE

STARLIGHT

AVE

S
U

B
E

R
S

T

I-77

EXIT
RAMP

D
AW

N
D

R

HEYWARD ST

JO
E

 L
O

U
IS

D
R

N
PA

R
S

O
N

S
T

CALHOUN
ST

T
O

O
LE

S
T

G
R

A
C

E
S

T

BLOSSOM

ST

BECKHAM ST

ABBEVILLE

ST

SHULL ST

PO
N

D
D

R

ADAMS ST

MULB
E

R
R

Y
LN

CITY CLUB

DR

W
ESTM

O
RE

LAND

LN

CATAWBA

S
T

G
R

E
G

G

S
T

JO
N

E
S

A
V

E

HERBERT ST

PENDLETON

ST

MURRAYST

KLAPMAN RD

FRIDAYS
FERRY

PICKETT ST

KLINE ST

W
Y

N
D

H
A

M
R

D

B
AT

E
S

 S
T

R
IV

E
R

W
O

O
D

D
R

O
LI

V
E

S
T

VINE ST

M
E

N
S

C
E

R

D
R

WAT E
R

M
A

R
K

P
L

GAS
LA

M
PD
R

PRENTIS
S

ST

GUM SWAMP

TRL

W
A

V
E

R
LY

S
T

AUGUSTA

RD

UNNAM
ED S

T

MAHOGANYRD

G
R

AN

BY

S
T

BEREA 
RD

ALSTON
RD

A
N

D
R

E
A

C
T

B
U

LL S
T

LADY ST

OLD
TAYLOR RD

LEXINGTON

ST

G
IS

T
S

T

MYRTLE
RD

D
A

LE
 S

T

I-26
E

N
T

R
A

N
C

E

R
A

M
P

I77

R
IV

E
R

LA
N

D
 D

R

LOWN DE
S

RD

C
A

S

S
INA

C
I R

BRAYTON ALY

MANOR

AVE

UNNAMED ST

E
D

D
IN

E
D

R

BYRO
N ST

UN

NAMED
ST

T
R

Y
O

N

S
T

GROVE

ST

F
LO

R
ID

A
ST

GODLE
Y ST

THORNTON

AVE

U
N

N
A

M
ED

ST

K
E

N
LE

Y
 D

R

LO
N

E
LY

S
T

IN
V

IE
W

R
D

DEVINE

ST

GARLAND
ST

HEM
LO

CK
DR

BELL
ST

WHEAT ST

D
EN

N
IS

O
R

R
LN

JA
M

E
S

S
T

PRODUCE

LN

M
IM

O
S

A

C
R

E
S

SHAMPY

ST

W
AYN

E
S

TGEDDES ST

BRO
O

KW
O

O
D

DR

GOLDFINCH

LN

TAMWOOD
CIR

S
TA

R
C

R
ES

T

R
D

DEPOT

ST

GERVAIS ST

QUARTERMASTER
ST

COLLEGE

ST

M
E

A
D

O
W

 S
T

H
IL

T
O

N
 S

T

LADY

ST

I-77 SOUTH RAMP
TO I-26 WEST

LIN
C

O
LN

S
T

C
H

A
T

H
A

M
 A

V
E

C
A

P
IT

O
L 

P
L

WHITE HOUSE RD

A
M

H
E

R
S

T
 A

V
E

UNNAMED

ST

RID
G

EW
O

O
D

DR

PA
R

K
 S

T

S
H

A
R

O
N

 C
IR

O
LD

FR
IN

K
ST

C
A

N
A

R
Y

D
R

LIN
C

O
LN

S
T

P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

A
V

E

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
S

T

C
H

IN
A

B
E

R
R

Y

LN

M
A

IN
ST

D
E

PT
IN

G

LN

CAMBRIDGE
CT

AX
SON

ST

EASY ST

R
E

Y
N

O
LD

S
D

R

LO
W

E

S
T

I-26
E

X
IT

R
A

M
P

D
O

G
W

O
O

D
 S

T

C
A

R
R

O
LL

D
R

LEE ST

COLUMBIA
ST

DUNCAN ST

W
E

S
T

S
T

UNNAMED ST

GARDEN AVE

EVELYN
ST

M
O

S
SR
D

TAY

L
O

R
S

HI L
L

D
R

T
Y

LE
R

S
T

W
ILDLIFE

LN

LIN
N

E

T DR

GIBBES

CT

PELLA AVE

LY
LES

ST

2ND AVE

M
A

R
IO

N

S
T

S
H

A
S

TA

D
R

LOWNSDALE
RD

MICHAELMAS AVE
KARLANEY AVE

CARTERHILL DR

MIDDLE

ST

MAHA
L

O
LN

B
U

R

N HAM ST

WAR
A

D
M

IRAL

D
R

HENSTONDR

C
E

M
E

TA
R

Y

C
T

S
U

M
T

E
R

S
T

LA
C

Y
S

T

COOPER
AVE

VA
N

TA
G

E
PO

INT

D
R

C
H

E
R

O
K

E
E

 D
R

H
U

M
M

IN
G

B
IR

D
D

R

SANDYLN

STARK

ST

PRENTICE
AVE

STONEW
O

OD

CT

S
PICKENS

ST

SHARON

CIR

17T
H

S
T

MAGDALENELN

PARK CIR

CAR

OLINA
CIR

JANSEN

AVE

R
O

C
K

Y
LN

BOXWOODDR

HOOVER

ST

HEIDI LN

M
O

B
IL

E
A

V
E

PLEASANT

VALLEY
RD

ADKINS CIR

JE
N

N
IN

G
S

C
T

UNNAMED ST

NEPHIST

C
H

A
D

S
W

O
R

T
H

D
R

E CHAPEL
D

R

H
IB

IS
C

U
S

 S
T

CALHOUN ST

W
O

O
D

B
IN

E

D
R

PRIN
C

E
T

O
N

S
T

B
LA

Y
LO

C
K

R
D

WHISPER

WAY

W
ISTER

IA

DR

C
H

IN
AS
T

CORNINGRD

VALLEYVIEW
RD

ACM
E

ST

M
O

RNIN
G

DALE

DR

LONG IRON CT

BREW
ERS

O
AK L

N
RIVERSTONE

CT

DE LMAR

ST

LAUREL LN

O
V

E
R

LA
N

D
D

R

WILMOT AVE

W
A

D
ES
T

EDEN
ST

NAT
IO

NAL
G

UAR
D

R
D

R
U

TLA
N

D
AV

E

NORTH

AVE

N
A

T
C

H
E

Z
TR

L

M
AUNEY D

R

C
O

N
G

A
R

E
E

D
R

SKIPPER ST

N
E

LS
O

N
LN

LO
N

G
LE

A
F

D
R

G
O

O
DALE

LN

ERVIN
ST

FARMERS

MARKET DR

HEATHE
R

D
R

W
E

S
TW

O
O

D
 S

T

HILLSIDEST

N

BR
O

W
N

S
T

H
A

R
O

LD
S

T

ASHWOOD
C

IR

DUNCAN

CT

I 77

RAM
PE

X
IT

E
LI

Z
A

B
E

T
H

A
V

E

R
E

M
B

R
A

N
D

T D
R

SANDHILLS

PKWY

IN
D

IG
O

P
LA

C
E

C
T

S
IM

M
O

N
S

S
T

HITE ST

S
 S

IM
S

A
V

E

K
LE

C
K

LE
Y

DR

PA
S

T
U

R
E

LN

R
E

Y
N

O
LD

S
D

R

C
O

N
G

A
R

EE
AV

E

G
A

R
D

E
N

P
LZ

S
E

C
O

N
D

AV
E

BR
ANCH

RD

STARK

ST

STEVENS
RD

BA
CK

MAN
DR

S
H

A
D

O
W

 LN

FOREMAN
S

T

O
LD

 S
TAT

E
 R

D

R
A

ILROAD

S
T

QUIN

TO
N

C
T

TA
Y

LO
R

S
T

S
A

IN
T

JA
M

E
S

AV
E

N
A

T
H

A
N

D
R

O
A

K
 LN

R
E

D
W

O
O

D
D

R

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

S
T

BLALOCKDR

S
IG

H
T

LE
R

D
R

C
R

E
S

T D
R

QUEEN

PKWY

M
ID

D
LE

S
T

MONROEST

F
R

O
N

T
IE

R
R

D

KENNEDY ST

A
LP

IN
E

 D
R

A
LE

X
 S

T

HOLLYDALE
DR

SPRUCE
LN

MAPLEWOOD

DR

JA
M

AICA

DR

ROSSCLAN
RD

P
IN

E
LN

ROSEWOOD DR

BETHDR

HUCKABEE

RD

AM
IC

K
S

T

ALLEN ST

F
R

ID
AY

S
F

E
R

R
Y

OCEOLA

ST

BENSMIN

DR

PRENTICE AVE

HOPE

AVE

J C LN

S
A

N
D

E
LLN

BAC
HM

AN
RD

NATALIE

RD

I7
7 

N

ARDEN LN

SEWANEE

AVE

A
B

E
LI

A
R

D

JA
N

IC
E

F E

T
R

L

B
LA

K
E

D
R

TAMPA ST

COLUMBIA AIRPORT EXPR

LA
N

C
A

S
T

E
R

 S
T

OAKLANDAVE

S
U

M
T

E
R

 S
T

CHERRYLN

ZE
IG

LE
R

R
D

JA
M

E
S

 S
TG
A

F
F

N
E

Y

S
T

N
O

R
TH

W
AY

R
D

SH
IR

LEYST

GODLEY
ST

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
S

T

K
A

W
A

N
A

R
D

KINGSG
ATE

DR

N

PARSO
N

ST

STOCKMAN

DR

CAVA
LI

ER CT

S
A

N
DALW

O
O

D

DR

CALICO CT

GIRLEY

S
T

R
O

S
E

D
A

LE

R
D

G
AB

RIEL RD

P

U RPLE
W

IN
G

L N

P
O

M
P

EI

I PL

HALL ST

BENEDICT

ST

GRACE

H
IL

L

RD

GIBRALTAR
RD

EMAN
U

E
L

D
R

H
O

P
K

IN
S

S
T

W
E

S

T WOOD CIR

BR
IAR

BU
S

H

LN

R
E

Y
N

O
R

D
C

IR

LE
E

 C
IR

KIRKWOO
DDR

UNNAMED ST

C
O

Y
O

TE
C

T

R
A

W
H

ID
E

 C
T

TO
LL

IV
ER

S
T

P
E

A
C

HS
T

U
N

N
A

ME

D
ST

M
A

R
Y

 D
R

R
ID

G
E

LN

UNN
A

M
ED

ST

C
A

R
E

E
R

P
A

TH

F
E

AT
H

E
R

R
U

NTR
L

UNNAMED

ST

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
 S

T

W
H

IS
P

E
R

IN
G

P
IN

E
S

C
IR

W
O

R
LIN

D
R

MELODY LN

I126

HICKOR
Y

LN

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
 S

T

KIRKWOOD

DR

E
A

R
L

C
T

GILV
IE

AV
E

BR
AM

BLEW
O

O
D

C
IR

WISCONSIN
ST

UNN
AMEDS T

G
R

IM
S

B
Y

LN

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
ST

AIRLINE DR

P
E

M
B

R
O

O
K

D
R

SILO CT

M
O

H
E

G
A

N

T
R

L

SHEFFIELD RD

CRAIG
SEN LN

S
A

R
A

M
O

N
T

RD

MAPLE ST

LONESOME CT

ASTER

C
IR

H
A

M
P

TO
N

C
R

E
S

T
D

R

F AVE

V
A

R
N

R
D

WHITESIDE CIR

FIS
H H

ATCHERY LN

EDGEWATERLN

I-26ENTRANCE

RAMP

WE S

T
H

AV
E

N
D

R

WILLIAMS ST

K
A

Y
 K

O
O

N

LN

CHIC
ORANA

RD

ELM

WOOD 

AVE

MAR
A

B
O

U
D

R

GRANBY

LANDINGRD

I-126 EXITRAMP

PA
LL

E
T

D
R

JEFFERSO
N

ST

HYLAN
D

C
IR

I126

SMITH
DR

COLUMBIAAIRPORT EXPR

I126

ANN LN

I77

C
O

O
LB

R
O

O
K

D
R

UNNAM
ED

FRO
NTAG

E
RD

CREEKSIDE RD

W
OODFIELD
RD

BLAKELYCT

VISTATO
W

E
R

S

DR

MAUNEYCT

I126

I- 2
6

EXIT
R

A
M

P

K
IN

S
LE

R
 D

R

TO
DD

CIR

I7
7

TRADE ZONE DR

MAYLYNN
DR

LO
R

IC
K

V
ILLAG

E

R
D

ARCHIVE

C
T

I-2
6

EX
IT

R
AM

P

E
S

S
E

X
D

R

P
IN

E
C

R
O

F
T D

R

C
O

O
LB

R
E

E
Z

E
D

R

G
U

N
TE

R
 C

IR

NEW
H

O
PE

AV
E

C
ATA

W
B

A

C
IR

RIS
IN

GHOPES RD

F
R

ID
A

Y
S

F
E

R
R

Y

K
E

N
T

UCKY AVE

U
N

N
A

M
E

D

S
T

B
U

LLD
O

G
B

LV
D

I126

HOLLA
N

D

C
IR

LEAN
D

ER

DR

SAXE GOTHA RD

B
U

R
LIE

D
R

SOUTHALL
RD

I-126 EAST

I126

PECAN
LN

CORPORATE

BLVD

I77

UNNAMED ST

M
A

N
N

IN
G

 D
R

FLO
R

ID
A

AV
E

U
N

N
A

M

ED ST

C
H

E
R

O
K

E
E

LN

RIVERMONT DR

C
O

U
G

A
R

D
R

CANDI LN

MCQUEEN ST

I77

CREEKSIDE
RD

I126

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
S

T

M
E

TR
O

 LN

JIM
HAMILTON BLVD

C
LO

V
IS

 P
O

IN
T

E
 W

AY

OTARRE
P

K
W

Y

I-126 EAST

I-126 WEST

B
E

C
K

A
M

 S
W

A
M

P
 R

D

I-
26

W
E

S
T

R
AM

P
TO

I-7
7 NORTH

BRATTON ST

U
NN

AMEDST

RI VERBENDDR

KILBOURNEHILL
RD

U
N

N
AM

ED

S
T

UNNAMED
ST

LECONTE
CT

U
N

N

A ME

D

ST

RIVERMONT DR

U
N

N
A

M
ED ST

JOSEPH WALKER

D R

RIVER
B

END

D

R

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
 S

T

R
E

YN
ORD

C
IR

UNNAM
ED

S
T

UNNAMEDST

UNNAMEDST

MARABOU

C
IR

I-2
6E

XIT

R
A

M
P

I-2

6ENTRAN
C

E

RAM P

WILLIA
M

S

S
T

I-
26

EN
TRANCER

A MP

N
E

W

BROO
K

LA
N

D

PL

UNNAMED

S
T

UNNAMED

S
T

Tim James

Hunter Sox

Byron Thomas

Phillip
Carter

3

AMERICAN AVE

W DUNBAR RD

DIVINCI RD

PLA
TT S

PRIN
GS R

D

VENETIAN RD

MILAN PASS M
E

M
O

R
IA

L

D
R

LA
K

E
D

O
G

W
O

O
D

D
R

FLORENTINE RD

ARTHURDALE DR

EMANUEL CHURCH RD

S
P

A
N

IS
H

C
T

TIOVOLI
CT

C
O

U
R

T
O

F

SAIN
T

PAU
L

LA
K

E
D

O
G

W
O

O
D

D
R

C
O

U
R

T
O

F

M
O

ZA
R

T

FOUNTAIN

HEAD
CT

F
O

X
W

O
O

D

C
T

H
U

N
T

E
R

S
M

ILL
C

T

HUNTERS MILL DR

B
R

U
T

U
S

P
A

S
S

A
R

T
H

U
R

D
A

LE
LN

M
A

R
K

A
N

T
H

O
N

Y
C

T

NAPLES PASS

C
AE

SA
R

S 
R

D

R
O

M
A

N

W
AY

C
EN

TU
R

IO
N

 P
AS

S

LIN
D

LER
 D

R

STO
N

E
C

R
O

SS CT

CALVARY
RD

CE
D

A
R

FIE

LD
LN

GRANS
C

O
V

E

S
C

O
TS

TO
WN LN

M
O

N
ZA

TR
L

DORA RD

AP
IA

N
W

AY

ESTES R
D

N
O

TR
E

D
AM

E
PA

S
S

VI
LL

A 
C

T

HUNTERS

MILL LN

City of Cayce Draft 7 - 8.63

Legend

Incumbents

Streets

Draft7
City_Dist

1

2

3

4 ²
0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.50.1

Miles

Date Exported: 2/13/2025 2:08 PM

Disconnected Portion of West Columbia- West of CAE Airport

ITEM IV. A. EXHIBIT A 



ITEM IV. A. 
EXHIBIT B



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 

PROCESS FOR 2020 
REDISTRICTING 

) 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) 

WHEREAS, the data for the 2020 Census pertaining to Cayce, South 
Carolina has been released for review, assessment, and redistricting of City 
districts in the City of Cayce; and  

WHEREAS, to ensure maximum review and public participation in 
developing redistricting plans based on the 2020 Census, the City of Cayce 
Council deems it necessary to publicly adopt criteria for the development of a 
redistricting plan in accordance with the 1965 Voting Rights Act as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the following criteria for developing plans for redistricting 2020 
will ensure compliance with the 1965 Voting Rights Act as amended and 
maximum public participation in the redistricting process: 

1. The City will adhere to the court ordered constitutional requirement of “one
person, one vote.” 

2. The City will adhere to the 1965 Voting Rights Act as amended and by
associated controlling court decisions. 

3. The City will ensure that districts are drawn contiguously, so that all parts
of the district are connected to each other. 

4. The City will ensure districts are drawn to minimize the division of voting
precincts. 

5. The City will keep proposed districts geographically compact to the extent
practicable, such that nearby areas of population are not bypassed for 
a more distant population. 

6. The City will ensure the districts are drawn, when feasible, with respect to
existing districts and communities of interests, which will require input 
from Council and citizens. 

7. The City will comply with other applicable court decisions and federal and
state laws. 

8. The City will solicit public comment and input as part of the development,
review, and adoption process. 

9. The City will adhere to the recommendations of the South Carolina
Revenue and Fiscal Affairs Office of adopting a plan with a population 
variance of five percent (5%) or less; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cayce commits to developing a plan which will not 
have the purpose nor the effect of diluting any existing minority voting strength as 
part of its redistricting efforts so long as such commitment does not impact the 
City’s ability to comply with the constitutional principles outlined above; and 

ITEM IV. A. 



 
WHEREAS, the City of Cayce expects the next steps to include receipt of a 

baseline map prepared by the South Carolina Revenue and Fiscal Affairs Office; 
public review and input of the baseline map; City Council review of baseline map; 
potential revisions; and Council adoption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the 
City of Cayce, in Council, duly assembled, that the above listed criteria for the 
2020 Census Redistricting criteria and associated processes are hereby adopted 
to ensure maximum public participation, transparency, and engagement in the 
redistricting process.   
 
 
 APPROVED this ____ day of_________ , 2023. 
 
 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Elise Partin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Mendy C. Corder, Municipal Clerk 



Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council 

From: James Crosland, City Manager 
Michael Conley, Deputy City Manager 

Date: March 4, 2025 

Subject: Agreement for Financial Consulting 

Issue 
Council approval is needed to authorize the City Manager to execute a Master Agreement with Raftelis 
Financial Consultants, Inc. 

Discussion 
Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. was engaged by Pope Flynn, LLC during FY24 to perform a Utility Rate 
Study for the City’s water and sewer utility funds.  Periodic reviews and updates to the rate study are 
required.  To continue utilizing the services of Raftelis for future financial consulting, the City must 
contract directly with Raftelis.  The City is allowed to waive the formal bid process for professional 
services as established by Ordinance.  

Sec. 2-144(9). – Procurements and contracts. 
City council may waive the informal and formal bid procedures when it is to the advantage of the 
city to acquire goods and/or services on a most convenient source basis or sole-source basis in 
situations of prolonged supply chain delays or on the basis of a previously awarded bid or 
contract, and for professional services when the person employed is customarily employed on a 
fee basis rather than by competitive bidding (such as, by way of example, for an appraiser, 
attorney or physician). 

(Code 1975, § 2-57) 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends City Council waive the formal bid process and allow the City Manager to execute a 
Master Agreement with Raftelis Financial Consulting, Inc. 

ITEM V. A. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

AND 
RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS, INC. 

This Consulting Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this            day of                   , 2025 (hereinafter 
referred to as the effective date of the agreement) by and between, City of Cayce, South Carolina (the 
“Client”) and Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., 227 W. Trade Street, Suite 1400, Charlotte, NC 28202 
(“Raftelis”). 

Witnesseth 

WHEREAS, Raftelis is engaged and experienced in public finance, management, and pricing, and service 
delivery, and WHEREAS, The Client desires to hire Raftelis and Raftelis agrees to provide services to the 
Client, NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

Article 1 – Statement of Work 

Raftelis shall provide professional consulting services to prepare various financial and/or organizational 
assessment services as requested and outlined in subsequent task orders for Client. Raftelis will 
perform the services as set forth in its proposals sent to Client and included in the Scope of Services. 

Article 2 – Time for Completion 

This Agreement will commence upon approval by the Client and remain in effect for a period of one 
year. Further renewals of this Agreement are at the option of and shall be mutually agreed to by the 
Parties. 

Article 3 – Compensation 

Client shall pay to Raftelis the sum not to exceed the amount listed in each task order, which 
includes professional fees and direct expenses incurred in performing the Scope of Services, as well as 
an hourly technology expense reimbursement. The parties understand that this sum is based upon the 
Scope of work at Raftelis’ current standard hourly rate schedule. Any expansion of the Scope of work 
by the Client shall involve discussion of and agreement about additional fees and time by both parties. 

Page 1 

ITEM V. A. 



Page 2 

Raftelis shall submit invoices to the Client on a monthly basis for services rendered to the date thereof. 
Such invoices shall be supported by appropriate documentation; at a minimum, the task performed, the 
individuals working on such task, the level of each such individual, and expenses incurred. Each invoice 
will contain all hours and expenses from Raftelis for the month. Upon receipt of monthly invoice, the Client 
will remit payment of same amount to Raftelis within 30 days. 

Article 4 – Additional Services 

At the Client’s request, Raftelis may submit proposals for additional professional services. Each proposal 
submitted shall detail: (1) Scope of work for the additional services; (2) period of services to be performed; 
and (3) method and amount of compensation. The Client shall provide written acceptance and authorization 
to Raftelis prior to the commencement of work on any proposed additional services. Each proposal for 
additional services accepted and approved by the Client shall become part of this Agreement and shall be 
governed by the terms and conditions contained herein. 

Article 5 – Place of Performance 

Raftelis shall be responsible for maintaining its own office facilities and will not be provided with either 
office facilities or support by the Client. 

Article 6 – Indemnification 

Raftelis hereby agrees to indemnify and defend the Client, its officers, directors, managers, and employees 
(“Indemnified Party” or “Indemnified Parties”) and to hold the Indemnified Parties harmless against third 
party claims, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, action, or demands against the 
Indemnified Parties and against damages for injury to or death of any person and for loss of or damage to 
all property caused by the negligent acts, errors, or omissions of Raftelis in performing this Agreement, 
except to the extent the claims, demands, liabilities, cost, and expenses are caused by the negligent acts, 
errors, or omission of an Indemnified Party. 

Article 7 – Insurance 

Raftelis shall maintain the types and levels of insurance during the life of this Agreement as specified below. 
The Client will be named as additional insured on Raftelis’ Certificates of Insurance and Raftelis will 
provide the Client with these Certificates of Insurance. 

Commercial General Liability Insurance – $1,000,000 for each occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate 

Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance – $1,000,000 combined single limit each occurrence – 
hired and non-owned only 

Workers Compensation Insurance – Statutory limits 



Page 3 

Professional Liability Insurance – $5,000,000 occurrence and $5,000,000 in excess  

Excess or Umbrella Liability – $5,000,000 occurrence and $5,000,000 in the aggregate 

Cyber Security – $5,000,000 

Article 8 – Confidential Information 

Raftelis acknowledges and agrees that in the course of the performance of the services pursuant to this 
Agreement, Raftelis may be given access to, or come into possession of, confidential information from the 
Client, of which information may contain privileged material or other confidential information. Raftelis 
acknowledges and agrees, except as required by judicial or administrative order, trial, or other governmental 
proceeding, that it will not use, duplicate, or divulge to others any such information marked as 
“confidential” disclosed to Raftelis by the Client (“Confidential Information”) without first obtaining 
written permission from the Client. All tangible embodiments of such information shall be delivered to the 
Client or the destination of such information by Raftelis requested by the Client. The Client acknowledges 
Raftelis has the right to maintain its own set of work papers, which may contain Confidential Information. 

Article 9 – Independent Contractor Status 

It is understood and agreed that Raftelis will provide the services under this Agreement on a professional 
basis as an independent contractor and that during the performance of the services under this Agreement, 
Raftelis’ employees will not be considered employees of the Client within the meaning or the applications 
of any federal, state, or local laws or regulations including, but not limited to, laws or regulations covering 
unemployment insurance, old age benefits, worker’s compensation, industrial accident, labor, or taxes of 
any kind. Raftelis’ employees shall not be entitled to benefits that may be afforded from time to time to 
Client employees, including without limitation, vacation, holidays, sick leave, worker’s compensation, and 
unemployment insurance. Further, the Client shall not be responsible for withholding or paying any taxes 
or social security on behalf of Raftelis’ employees. Raftelis shall be fully responsible for any such 
withholding or paying of taxes or social security. 

Article 10 – Reliance on Data 

In performance of the services, it is understood that the Client and/or others may supply Raftelis with certain 
information and/or data, and that Raftelis will rely on such information. It is agreed that the accuracy of 
such information is not within Raftelis’ control and Raftelis shall not be liable for its accuracy, nor for its 
verification, except to the extent that such verification is expressly a part of Raftelis’ Scope of services. 

Article 11 – Standard of Performance 

Raftelis will perform the services under this Agreement in accordance with the standard of professionals in 
its industry prevailing at the time and place the services are performed. Raftelis’ opinions, estimates, 



Page 4 

projections, and forecasts of current and future costs, revenues, other levels of any sort, and events and 
estimates of cost-justified system development fees shall be made on the basis of available information and 
Raftelis’ expertise and qualifications as a professional. Raftelis will perform the Scope of services in 
conformance with the professional standards in its field of expertise prevailing at the time and place the 
Scope of services are performed. Raftelis does not warrant or guarantee that its opinions, estimates, 
projections or forecasts of current and future levels and events will not vary from the Client’s estimates or 
forecasts or from actual outcomes. Raftelis identifies costs, allocates costs to customer classes and provides 
rate models. It does not establish rates, which is the legislative responsibility of the Client. 

Article 12 – No Consequential Damages 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, neither party shall be liable to the other for any special, indirect, 
consequential, punitive or exemplary damages resulting from the performance or non-performance of this 
Agreement notwithstanding the fault, tort (including negligence), strict liability or other basis of legal 
liability of the party so released or whose liability is so limited and shall extend to the officers, directors, 
employees, licensors, agents, subcontractors, vendors and related entities of such party. 

Article 13 – Termination of Work 

This Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

1. By Client. (a) for its convenience on 30 days’ notice to Raftelis; or (b) for cause, if Raftelis
materially breaches this Agreement through no fault of Client and Raftelis neither cures such
material breach nor makes reasonable progress toward cure within 15 days after Client has given
written notice of the alleged breach to Raftelis.

2. By Raftelis. (a) for cause, if Client materially breaches this Agreement through no fault of Raftelis
and Client neither cures such material breach nor makes reasonable progress toward cure within 15
days after Raftelis has given written notice of the alleged breach to Client; or (b) upon five days’
notice if Work under this Agreement has been suspended by either Client or Raftelis in the
aggregate for more than 30 days.

3. Payment upon Termination. In the event of termination, Raftelis shall be compensated for all
work properly performed prior to the effective date of termination.

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank) 



Page 5 

Article 14 – Notices 

All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed deliverable 
when delivered in person or deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

If for the Client: If for Raftelis: 

Name Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. 
227 W. Trade Street 
Suite 1400 
Charlotte, NC  28202 Title 

Address 

Article 15 – Ownership of Work Product 

All documents, data, compilations reports and studies prepared by Raftelis in performing the Scope of 
services shall be the property of the Client; provided that any use other than as contemplated in this 
Agreement or any alteration or modification of the Work Product shall be at the sole risk of Client, and 
Client shall indemnify, defend and hold Raftelis harmless from any claim, demand, liability, cost or 
expenses incurred by Raftelis from such use or modification. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed an 
assignment, transfer, or divestiture of its use by Raftelis of any of its trade secrets, know-how, or intellectual 
property. 

Article 16 – Compliance with Applicable Laws 

Raftelis is an equal opportunity employer and complies with all federal, state, and local fair employment 
practices laws. Raftelis strictly prohibits and does not tolerate discrimination against employees, applicants, 
or any other covered persons because of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender identity, 
sexual orientation, marital status, sex, pregnancy, age, disability, past, current, or prospective service in the 
uniformed services, or any other characteristic protected under applicable federal, state, or local law. All 
Raftelis employees, other workers, and representatives are prohibited from engaging in unlawful 
discrimination. This policy applies to all terms and conditions of employment, including, but not limited to, 
hiring, training, promotion, corrective action, compensation, benefits, and termination of employment. 

Any act of discrimination committed by Raftelis in the course of its performance under this Agreement, or 
failure to comply with these statutory obligations when applicable, shall be grounds for termination of this 
Agreement. 



Page 6 

Article 17 – General Provisions 

A. Entire
Agreement:

This Agreement represents the entire and sole agreement between the Parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof. 

B. Waiver: The failure of either Party to require performance by the other of any provision 
hereof shall in no way affect the right to require performance at any time thereafter, 
nor shall the waiver of a breach of any provision hereof be taken to be a waiver of 
any succeeding breach of such provision or as a waiver of the provision itself. All 
remedies afforded in this Agreement shall be taken and construed as cumulative; 
that is, in addition to every other remedy available at law or in equity. 

C. Relationship: Nothing herein contained shall be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership,
or principal-agent relationship between Raftelis and the Client; and neither Party 
shall have the right, power, or authority to obligate or bind the other in any manner 
whatsoever, except as otherwise agreed to in writing. 

D. Assignment
and
Delegation:

Neither Party shall assign this Agreement or any rights, duties, or obligations 
hereunder without the express written consent of the other. Subject to the foregoing, 
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors, legal 
representatives, and assignees of the Parties hereto. 

E. Severability: If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid or unenforceable, such 
provision shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary to render it valid and 
enforceable. In any event, the unenforceability or invalidity of any provision shall 
not affect any other provision of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall 
continue in force and effect, and be construed and enforced, as if such provision 
had not been included, or had been modified as above provided, as the case 
may be. 

F. Governing
Law:

This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws 
of the State of South Carolina. 

G. Paragraph
Headings:

The paragraph headings set forth in this Agreement are for the convenience of the 
Parties, and in no way define, limit, or describe the Scope or intent of this Agreement 
and are to be given no legal effect. 

H. Third Party
Rights:

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create or confer any rights or interest 
to any third party or third-party beneficiary. It is the intent of the parties that no other 
outside, non-party claimant shall have any legal right to enforce the terms of this 
Agreement. 



Page 7 

Article 18 – Disclosures 

As a registered Municipal Advisor under the Dodd-Frank Act, Raftelis is required to inform our clients of 
any existing or potential conflicts of interest that may be relevant to any proposed scope of services that 
may include providing “advice” as that term is defined in the Dodd-Frank Act. As of the date of this 
engagement letter, no conflicts of interest are known to exist. 

Under the Dodd-Frank Act the definition of “advice” includes providing any opinion, information or 
assumptions related to the size, timing and terms of possible future debt issues or borrowing. This type of 
information may be integrated into the capital and financial planning components of a rate study update. 
This definition is applicable regardless of whether this information is developed and used solely for 
planning and decision-making purposes. For the services addressed in the scope of work identified for this 
engagement, any information that is developed by Raftelis that falls under this definition of municipal 
advice is not intended to represent a recommendation that the City of Cayce  should issue debt based on the 
terms and assumptions used to develop the financial plan or forecast, or that the City of Cayce will, in fact, 
be able to issue debt under the exact terms and conditions assumed and used to develop the financial plan 
or forecast. The information developed as part of this rate study update, including any related municipal 
advice, is intended only to provide information useful in evaluating the potential impact on the utility and 
future rate adjustments of one potential course of action for the City of Cayce. If the City of Cayce decides 
at some future date to issue debt, then at that time the City of Cayce will need to engage an independent, 
registered Financial Advisor to assist in evaluating the availability of different types of debt, and the specific 
terms and conditions for issuing debt, which will be affected by market conditions and the 
’s credit rating at the time of issuance. At that time, as a registered Municipal Advisor, Raftelis can also 
provide additional assistance related to a specific bond or debt issue, such as preparing a bond feasibility 
report or financial forecast for inclusion in bond documents. 

Any services provided under this agreement that fall under the definition of municipal advice are only 
covered through the term of this agreement. Raftelis may withdraw from providing municipal advisory 
services upon written notification to the City of Cayce. 

The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) provides significant protections for municipal 
entities and obligated persons that are clients of a municipal advisor. To understand the protections provided 
and how to file a complaint with an appropriate regulatory authority, visit the MSRB’s web site at 
www.msrb.org. 

Raftelis does not have any legal events or disciplinary history on Raftelis’ Form MA and Form MA-I, which 
includes information about any criminal actions, regulatory actions, investigations, terminations, 
judgements, liens, civil judicial actions, customer complaints, arbitrations, and civil litigation. Raftelis’ 
most recent form MA and each most recent Form MA-I filed with the SEC may be assessed electronically 
at the following website:  www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html 



Page 8 

There have been no material changes to a legal or disciplinary event disclosure on any Form MA or Form 
MA-I filed with the SEC. If any material legal or regulatory actions is brought against Raftelis, Raftelis will 
provide complete disclosure to the City of Cayce in detail. 

By signing this disclosure letter  indicating its approval and acceptance of the of the proposed scope of work 
and fees, the City of Cayce is also explicitly acknowledging that Raftelis has provided the necessary 
disclosures addressing conflicts of interest and any limitations on the scope of Municipal Advisory services 
to be provided by Raftelis’ part of this engagement.



Page 9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized 
representatives. 

By: 
Signature 

Title 

Date 

Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. 

By: 
Signature 

Title 

Date 

This is to certify that an appropriation in the amount of this contract is available therefore and that 
_________________________ has been authorized to execute the contract and approve all requisitions and 
change orders. 

By: 
Signature 

Title 



APPROVED MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2024 
CAYCE CITY HALL – 1800 12TH STREET 

6:30 PM  

I. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by Chair Richard Boiteau.  Robert Power, Danny Creamer,
Patty Foy, Michael Mahoney, Nancy Stone-Collum, and Michael Wuest were present.  Michael
Conley and Monique Ocean were present as staff.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR NOVEMBER 18, 2024, MEETING
Robert Power made a motion to approve the minutes of the November 18, 2024, meeting.  Patty
Foy seconded the motion. All were in favor.

III. STATEMENT OF NOTIFICATION
Ms. Ocean confirmed that the media and the public had been made aware of the meeting and
public hearing.

IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS
1. Map Amendment MA004-24

A request by the owner, Rice, Beans, and Potatoes, LLC, to rezone property from M-1(Light 
Industrial) to M-2 (Heavy Industrial). The property is located on Dixiana Road and identified as 
Tax Map Number 006899-01-027.  

2. Map Amendment MA006-24
A request by the owner, Rice, Beans, and Potatoes, LLC, to annex property located on Dixiana 
Road. The request includes assigning an M-2 (Heavy Industrial) zoning designation to the 
property. The property is identified as Tax Map Number 006899-01-029.  

3. Map Amendment MA007-24
A request by the owner, Rice, Beans, and Potatoes, LLC, to annex a portion of property located 
on Dixiana Road. The request includes assigning an M-2 (Heavy Industrial) zoning designation 
to the property. The property is identified as Tax Map Number 006899-01-030.  

a. Staff’s Opening Statement
Ms. Ocean appeared before the Planning Commission to discuss the proposed map amendments. 
She explained that the property owner intends to annex two properties into the City and rezone 
the adjacent property. She said the property under Cayce’s jurisdiction would be rezoned from 
M-1 (Light Industrial) to M-2 (Heavy Industrial), and the annexed properties would also be
designated as M-2. Ms. Ocean confirmed that the request complies with the Comprehensive
Plan.

b. Comments from the Applicant
Mr. John Roberts appeared before the Planning Commission as a representative for the property 
owner/applicant. He stated that the owner/applicant wished to rezone a parcel of land located on 
Dixiana Road and to request for annexation for two outlying parcels. Mr. Roberts explained that 

ITEM VI. A. 



the owner/applicant believed rezoning the property to M-2 (Heavy Industrial) would be the most 
appropriate and beneficial land use for the area. 

c. Comments from the Public 
There was no one present to speak for or against the requests. 

d. Adjourn Public Hearing 
Without any further discussion, the public hearing was adjourned. 

e. Motion 
1. Michael Mahoney made a motion to recommend approval of the map amendment to 

rezone the property on Dixiana Road from M-1 to M-2.  Robert Power seconded the 
motion.  All were in favor. 

2. Michael Wuest made a motion to recommend approval of the map amendment to annex 
the property located on Dixiana Road and to assign an  M-2 (Heavy Industrial) zoning 
designation. Patty Foy seconded the motion.  All were in favor. 

3. Nancy Stone-Collum made a motion to recommend approval of the map amendment to 
annex property on Dixiana Road and assign an M-2 zoning designation. Michael Wuest 
seconded the motion.  All were in favor. 

 
V. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Possible comments from staff or Planning Commission  
Michael Conley informed the Planning Commission that four proposals had been received for 
the updates to the Zoning Ordinance and Land Development Regulations. He stated that the 
selection committee, consisting of two Planning Commission members and staff, had chosen 
Stewart Engineering to undertake the project. Mr. Conley noted that Stewart Engineering had 
submitted a clear and concise timeline for the work and he highlighted that the firm’s local 
contact could offer significant benefits throughout the process. 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
Michael Mahoney made a motion to adjourn.  Patty Foy seconded the motion.  All were in favor.  
 
 
 
A quorum of Council may be present. No discussion or action on the part of the Council will be 
taken. 



Page 1 of 3 

Cayce Historical Museum Commission 

January 8, 2025 

 Meeting Minutes 

The January 8, 2025 meeting of the Cayce Historical Museum Commission (CHMC) was held in the 
Cayce Visitors Center. The meeting was convened at 5:13pm by Chair James Stewart. The following 
individuals attended the meeting:  

Name Status 
James Stewart Chair 
Pamela Sulton Vice Chair 
Marcy Hayden Secretary 
Archie Moore Commissioner 
A.G. Dantzler Commissioner  (absent) 
Charlita Earle Commissioner  (absent) 
Keith Stephenson Commissioner 
David Brinkman Commissioner 
Will Britz Commissioner  (absent) 
Andy Thomas Cayce Museum Curator 
Elizabeth Lumsden Cayce Museum Assistant 
Mike Conely Deputy City Manager 

Upcoming Events: 
February-African American Heritage Month 
2/15/25-Battle of Congaree Creek Encampment Event 
3/22/25-Soiree on State Street 
4/5/25-Tartan Day South Colonial Village 

Invocation: Vice Chair Sulton 

Action Items: 

November Meeting Minutes:  
The Commission reviewed the previous meeting minutes. Commissioner Moore motioned that 
the meeting minutes be accepted with change to section regarding lantern tours were canceled 
due to damage in the park not volunteers and Vice Chair Sulton seconded the motion. The 
minutes were approved pending the correction.  

ITEM VI. A. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Commission Officers Elections 
 
Chair Stewart opened the floor for nominations. He expressed interest in continuing to serve as 
Chair. Commissioner Sulton nominated James Stewart to serve as Chair for 2025 and the motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Brinkman. The motion passed.  
 
Chair Stewart nominated Commissioner Pamala Sulton to serve as Vice Chair for 2025 and the 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Hayden. The motion passed. 
 
Chair Stewart nominated Commissioner Marcy Hadyen to serve as Secretary for 2025 and the 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Stevenson. The motion passed.  
 
With officers elected, the Commissioner reviewed the Commission’s By-laws. It was noted that 
the meeting time needed to be updated in Section III, part 4 to reflect the new meeting time of 
5pm. This has already been approved by the City and should be updated in the document. There 
were no other changes at this time.  
 
Museum Staff Report 
 
The Columbia Airport Exhibit display is at the printer after review by the Commission. The 
exhibit does not have an opening date, but should be announced soon.  
 
Museum staff and volunteers are making progress on the NAGPRA inventory having recorded 
around 4,486 objects to date. The NAGPRA report will begin in January as previously discussed, 
as work continues until all Native American Indian items are cataloged. Additionally, volunteers 
are working on archival items in the storage building to catalog and organize items in the 
collection.  
 
New exhibits: Public Safety exhibit and REV250 exhibits are being worked on and will need 
funding for the Public Safety exhibit.  
 
Upcoming Events: Partnership for children’s programs with Mota Crosslinking Business 
Academy was canceled for January, but is scheduled for February. TBA on the details for this 
series. February is Black History Month and the social media posts are being planned along with 
possible speakers. The Battle of Congaree Creek Anniversary is scheduled to take place at the 
Museum on Feb. 15th from 9am-3pm and will feature an encampment with Union and 
Confederates. March 22nd will be the Soiree on State Street event and the Museum will have a 
table.  
 
Donations 
 
Gift of Cayce School and Family Objects (Fred Shurmpt) 
 
Motion to accept donated items due to their significance and added value to current exhibits was 
made by Chair Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Moore. Motion passed.   



Page 3 of 3 
 

Ongoing Business:  
 
Event Debrief-Cayce Christmas Traditions 
 

● Over 325 people attended the event with lots of families and children 
● Under Budget and positive feedback about market and music 
● Areas for improvement: 

○ Issues with lights and electrical on the Museum/City grounds (Mr. Conley 
addressed this issue and the City will work to fix the electrical issues.) 

○ Market Stalls are too cumbersome to put up and take down each year, so the plan 
is to repurpose the wood for other projects around the Museum grounds.  

○ Emergency vehicles need to be present and block the driveways. 
○ Additional lights in the area will help with the “festive” look of the City’s 

Christmas lights. It was requested that the outbuildings, train and trees also be 
decorated by the City during their Christmas light decorating. 

○ Additional signage and social media advertising to bring in more people.  
○ Photo opts are a great idea and they could bring more people out along with food 

trucks in addition to vendors. 
○ Had some feedback regarding missing the individuals dressed in period outfits. 

Encouraged to invite local groups to dress up and attend.  
○ Also floated the idea of combining the Traditions event with the tree lighting 

event, but that would need to be explored further with the Women’s Club of 
Cayce.  

 
Strategic Planning-Historic Preservation 
 
No updates at this time. 

Old State Road NRHP Nomination 
 
No updates at this time. 
 
New Business: 
 
No additional business.  
 
Additional Business:  
 
No additional business.  
 
With no other business on the meeting agenda and a motion to adjourn was made by 
Commissioner Moore and seconded by Commissioner Brinkman. The meeting adjourned at 
6:04PM. 



Events Committee Minutes 
January 9, 2025 

Present: Mike Harlen, Maxine Creamer, Ashley Brown, Dave Capps, Ashley Warthen 

Absent: Jean Boiteau 

Guest: Forrest Ryan 

City Representatives: Amanda Rowan, Mendy Corder 

Meeting was called to order. 

The committee reviewed the November 14 minutes. Mr. Harlen noted his name was misspelled.  Mr. 
Capps made the motion to approve with the correction of the spelling of Mr. Harlen’s name.  Ms. 
Creamer seconded the motion, and the motion was unanimously passed. 

Old Business: 

The committee reviewed the Christmas in Cayce Carols Along the Riverwalk. The committee decided to 
forgo coffee next year as most guests preferred hot chocolate.  Next year the committee will increase 
the hot chocolate to 400 cups. Ms. Ryan suggested also having hot apple cider at the event.  Parks will 
look at the electricity in the pavilion to see if there are outlets on both sides. Mr. Capps recommended 
finding a hand bells group for next year as well.  Ms. Corder stated that she would look into having a 
drone at next year’s event to take video and photos of the event to use when marketing it.     

New Business: 

The Spring Plant exchange will take place on April 12th at 10:00am. Committee members are requested 
to arrive by 9:30 to set up and to assist the participants with carting their plants.   

Soiree on State takes place March 22nd. Ms. Rowan explained some of the changes, such as the “Future 
Artists Stage” and the calendar contest judging. Mr. Harlen suggested using JROTC cadets for zip code 
taking. Committee members will discuss Soiree in more detail at February’s meeting.  Mr. Capps 
suggested having a banner made for the Events Committee tent to list all the City’s events and a QR 
code on it to link to the City’s Events page.    

Bylaws:  Mr. Harlen asked about the terms of the committee.  Ms. Corder stated most terms were 1-2 
years depending on whether the position was an unexpired term or new appointment.  The Events 
Committee currently has five open positions. Ms. Creamer suggested leaving the terms as is for the time 
being. Ms. Corder suggested tabling the election of officers until the committee was able to acquire 
more members. 

With no further business, Ms. Creamer made a motion to adjourn, and Mr. Capps seconded. The 
motion carried and the meeting was adjourned. The next Events Committee meeting will be February 
13, 2024, at 5:30 PM in Council Chambers. 

ITEM VI. A. 



APPROVED MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MONDAY, JANUARY 27, 2025 
CAYCE CITY HALL – 1800 12TH STREET 

6:30 PM  

I. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by Chair Richard Boiteau. Planning Commission
members Nancy Stone-Collum, Patty Foy, Robert Power, Michael Mahoney, and
Michael Wuest were present. Danny Creamer was absent.  Monique Ocean was present
as staff.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Nancy Stone-Collum made a motion to approve the minutes of the December 18, 2024,
Planning Commission Meeting with corrections.  Patty Foy seconded the motion. All
were in favor.

III. STATEMENT OF NOTIFICATION
Ms. Ocean confirmed that the public and media had been made aware of the meeting.

IV. COMMISSION MATTERS
A. Review of By-Laws

There were no changes made to the existing by-laws.
B. Nomination and election of Officers for 2025

Nancy Stone-Collum made a motion to elect Richard Boiteau as Chair of the
Planning Commission.  Patty Foy seconded the motion.  All were in favor.
Robert Power made a motion to elect Michael Mahoney as Vice-Chair. Richard
Boiteau seconded the motion.  All were in favor.

C. Nomination and election of Secretary for 2025
Richard Boiteau made a motion to elect Monique Ocean as Secretary.  Michael
Mahoney seconded the motion.  All were in favor.

D. Approval of meeting schedule for 2025
The meeting schedule for 2025 was approved.

V. NEW BUSINESS
Ms. Ocean provided an update to the Planning Commission on the progress of the Zoning
Ordinance and Land Development Regulations. She mentioned that bi-weekly calls with
Stewart, Inc. and staff had commenced. Additionally, Ms. Ocean informed the Planning
Commission that Stewart, Inc. would be meeting with them in the future. She also
requested that the Planning Commission submit any ideas or topics from the Zoning
Ordinance that they would like to discuss.

VI. ADJOURNMENT
Nancy Stone-Collum made a motion to adjourn.  Michael Mahoney seconded the motion.
All were in favor.

ITEM VI. A. 



Memorandum
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Mayor and Council 

James Crosland, City Manager 
Michael Conley, Deputy City Manager 
Monique Ocean, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

March 4, 2025 

Second Reading of an Ordinance to rezone property on Dixiana Road 
(Tax Map Number 006899- 01-027) from M-1 to M-2 

Issue 
Council approval is needed for the Second Reading of an Ordinance to rezone property located 
on Dixiana Road and further identified as Tax Map Number 006899-01-027 from M-1 (Light 
Industrial) to M-2 (Heavy Industrial). 

Discussion 
The applicant/owner has requested the rezoning of approximately 82 acres on Dixiana Road 
(Tax Map Number 006899-01-027) from M-1 to M-2. 

The M-2 zoning district supports industrial uses that may not be compatible with more sensitive 
areas, which is why it is typically located in more isolated or buffered regions. 

The requested M-2 zoning is compatible with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Future Land 
Use Map. 

The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed map amendments at its regularly scheduled 
meeting on December 16, 2024. No public comments were made in favor of or against the 
proposed changes. 

Recommendation 
The Planning Commission unanimously recommended that Council approve the rezoning of Tax 
Map Number 006899-01-027 from M-1 to M-2. 

ITEM XI. A. 



1 

WHEREAS, the Owner/Applicant requested that the City of Cayce amend the 
Zoning Map to re-designate the property comprising and shown on Dixiana Road, with 
Tax Map Number 006899-01-027, from M-1 (Light Industrial) to M-2 (Heavy Industrial), 
and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on this request to 
receive comments from the public and adjacent property owners, and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met on December 16, 2024, to receive 
public comments and vote on whether to recommend the rezoning request, and has 
decided by a unanimous vote that is does recommend this change to the existing zoning, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Cayce, in Council, duly assembled, that the property hereinafter listed, and as shown on 
the attached sketch, is hereby rezoned and reclassified on the Zoning Map of the City of 
Cayce as M-2 (Heavy Industrial): 

Tax Map Number 006899-01-027 
Dixiana Road 

This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading approval by 
Council. 

DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2025. 

    ______________________________ 
    Elise Partin, Mayor 

Attest: 
______________________________ 
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 

First Reading: _____________________ 

Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 

Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
      William C. Dillard, Jr., City Attorney 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA       ) 
) 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON  ) 
) 

CITY OF CAYCE   ) 

ORDINANCE 2025-01 
Amending the Zoning Map and 
Rezoning Property Located on 
Dixiana Road (Tax Map Number 
006899-01-027) from M-1 to M-2 

ITEM XI. A. 



ITEM XI. A. 







City 
of C

ayc
e

City of Cayce

Dixiana Rd

M-1

M-1

Dixiana Rd

I-26 East

I-26 West

I-77 South

I-77 North

I-77 Exit Ramp

Saxe Gotha Rd

I-26 Exit Ramp

I-77 Entrance Ramp

Starmount Dr

I-26 West Ramp To I-77 North

Starview Dr Rembrandt Dr

I-77 South Ramp To I-26 East

I-26 East Ramp To I-77 North

Starcrest Rd

I-26 Entrance Ramp

I-77 South Ramp To I-26 West

Pa
lle

t D
r

Co
yot

e C
t

Va
nta

ge
 P

oin
t D

r

Scana Pkwy

Cambridge Ct

Starlight Ave

Starview Ct

REZONING REQUEST
DIXIANA ROAD

TMS 006899-01-027

±1,000 0 1,000500 Feet

Legend
Rezoning Request

ITEM XI. A. 



Memorandum
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject:  

Mayor and Council 

James Crosland, City Manager 
Michael Conley, Deputy City Manager 
Monique Ocean, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

March 4, 2025 

Second Reading of an Ordinance to annex properties located on Dixiana Road 
(Tax Map Number 006899-01-029 and 006899-01-030), assigning M-2 zoning 
designations  

Issue 
Council approval is needed for the Second Reading of an Ordinance to annex properties 
located on Dixiana Road (Tax Map Numbers 006899-01-029 and 006899-01-030) and assign 
them the M-2 zoning designation. 

Discussion 
The applicant/owner has requested the annexation of two parcels on Dixiana Road (Tax Map 
Numbers 006899-01-029 and 006899-01-030), totaling approximately 14.6 acres. In addition to 
the annexation, the applicant seeks an M-2 zoning designation for these properties.  

The M-2 zoning district is designed to accommodate industrial uses that may not be compatible 
with certain environments, which is why these districts are typically located in areas 
geographically separated or buffered from more sensitive zones. 

The requested M-2 zoning aligns with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map. 

If approved, these parcels will be incorporated into the applicant’s larger 82-acre property on 
Dixiana Road. 

The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed map amendments at its regularly scheduled 
meeting on December 16, 2024. No public comments were made in favor of or against the 
proposed changes. 

Recommendation 
The Planning Commission unanimously recommends that City Council approve the annexation 
of Tax Map Numbers 006899-01-029 and 006899-01-030 and assign the M-2 zoning 
designation. 

ITEM XI. B. 



1 

WHEREAS, a proper petition has been filed with the City of Cayce by the owner of 100 percent of the 
assessed value of the contiguous properties hereinafter described petitioning for annexation of the properties to 
the City of Cayce under the provisions of S.C. Code 5-3-150(3); and 

WHEREAS, it appears to Council that annexation would be in the best interest of the property owners 
and the City of Cayce, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Cayce, in Council, duly 
assembled, that the properties hereinafter described are hereby annexed to and become a part of the City of 
Cayce: 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTIONS 

All those certain pieces, parcels, or lots of land, situate, lying and being near the City of Cayce in the 
County of Lexington, State of South Carolina, being shown on attached Exhibit “B” which is made part of 
this Ordinance and consisting of approximately 14.6 acres:  

(1) The parcel of property not currently within the City that is located at the end of Coyote Court,
Lexington County, further identified as Lexington County Tax Map Number 006899-01-029,
and

(2) The parcel of property not currently within the City that is located on Dixiana Road, Lexington
County, further identified as Lexington County Tax Map Number 006899-01-030.

The properties shall be zoned M-2 (Heavy Industrial), in accord with City of Cayce Zoning 
Ordinance, Section 3.15, and this classification shall become effective upon the effective date of this 
annexation ordinance.  These properties are added to voting district Number Four (4).   

This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading approval by Council. 

DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2025. 

 ______________________________ 
 Elise Partin, Mayor 

Attest: 

______________________________ 
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 

First Reading: _____________________ 

Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 

Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
      William C. Dillard Jr., City Attorney 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
) 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON   ) 
) 

CITY OF CAYCE   ) 

ORDINANCE 2025-02 
Annexing Properties Located on Dixiana Road 
(TMS# 006899-01-029 and TMS# 006899-01-
030) into the City Limits Under the Provisions
of South Carolina Code Section 5-3-150(3)

ITEM XI. B. 



ITEM XI. B. 





City 
of C

ayc
e

City of Cayce

Dixiana Rd

I-26 W
est

I-26 East

I-77 South

I-77 North

I-77 Exit Ramp

Saxe Gotha Rd

I-26 Exit R
am

p

I-26 West Ramp To I-77 North

I-77 Entrance Ramp

Rem
brandt Dr

Starm
ount Dr

Pa
lle

t D
r

Co
yo

te
 C

t

Scana Pkwy

I-77 South Ramp To I-26 East

Vantage Point Dr

Cambridge Ct
I-77 South Ram

p To I-26 East

ANNEXATION REQUEST
DIXIANA ROAD

TMS 006899-01-029 AND TMS 006899-01-030

±1,000 0 1,000500 Feet

Legend
Annexation Request

Cayce City Limits Line

ITEM XI. B. 


	030425 Regular Council Meeting Agenda
	Item I. B. - February 4, 2025, Public Hearing and Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	Item I. B. - February 19, 2025, Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	Item III. A. - Presentation on the Rewrite of the City's Zoning Ordinance
	Item IV. A -  White Paper Discussion and Approval of Ordinance 2025-03 Establishing New Municipal  District/Ward Lines for the Election of Council Members Reflecting Population 
     Changes in the Year 2020 Census and Repealing All Previous Ordinances 
     Establishing District/Ward Lines – Second Reading 
         

	Item IV. A - Ordinance 2025-03 Establishing New Municipal District Ward Lines
	Item IV. A. -Map Proposed Changes Draft 7
	Item IV.A - Demographics V. 7
	Item IV. A - Resolution Approving 2020 Redistricting Process
	Item V. A. - Discussion and Approval to Enter into a Contract wiith Raftelis Financial White Paper
	Item V. A. - Professional Services Agreement between city of Cayce and Raftelis
	Item VI. A - PC Approved Minutes.12.16.24
	Item VI. A. - Museum Commission Meeting Minutes 010825
	Item VI. A. - Events Committee Meeting Minutes 010925
	Item VI. A - PC Approved Minutes.Jan.2025
	Item XI. A. - White Paper Map Amendment Rezone Dixiana Rd (002)
	Item XI A. - Ordinance Dixiana Rd M-1 to M-2
	Item XI. A. - Rezoning Application Dixiana Rd
	Item XI. A. - Map Annexiation Request
	Item XI. B. - White Paper Map Amendment Annex Dixiana Rd
	Item XI. B. - Ordinance Annexation Dixiana Rd
	Item XI. B. - Annexation Application Dixiana Rd
	Item XI. B. - Map Annexation Request.PC.12.18.24



